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Chairman’s Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group’s sales turnover
increased by 9% to HK$2.42 bilion (2011: HK$2.22 billion) and
the consolidated net profit decreased by 21% to HK$127.1 million
(2011 restated: HK$161.2 million). Basic earnings per share of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 was HK37.9 cents (2011
restated: HK48.1 cents). The Board of Directors has resolved to
recommend at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting the payment
of a final dividend of HK12.5 cents (2011: HK15.0 cents) per
share for the year ended 31 March 2012. Together with the interim
dividend of HK2.5 cents per share paid in January this year, the total
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 will be HK15 cents per
share (2011: HK20 cents).

Business Review

The Group is engaged in design and manufacturing of a wide range
of household electrical appliances.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, sales turnover increased
across all markets. The overall business environment continued to
be tough and competitive. Our profit margins are eroded by the
increase in commodity and raw material prices, rise in labour costs
and appreciation of Renminbi. However, we were unable to pass
on all cost increases to our customers due to sluggish economy
and consumer sentiments. To mitigate these negative impacts on
the margins, we continue to focus in streamlining, productivity
and efficiency improvements through semi-automation, lean
manufacturing concepts and projects and stringent cost control
measures.

The two new factory blocks in the new plant in Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC commenced operation in August
2011. The new plant is able to provide additional manufacturing
capacity to meet with our future growth and allows us to achieve
improvements in utilization and rationalization in our existing plants.
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Chairman’s Statement

Business Review (continueq)

During the year under review, sales turnover increased by 9% to
HK$2.42 billion. Sales turnover to Europe increased by 5% to
HK$1.28 billion representing 53% of the Group’s sales turnover.
Sales turnover to Asia increased by 9% to HK$658.3 million
representing 27% of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover to
America increased by 17% to HK$356.8 million representing 15%
of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover to other markets
increased by 46% to HK$120.4 million representing 5% of the
Group’s sales turnover.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 decreased by 15%
to HK$311.8 million. Gross profit margin dropped from 17% to 13%.
The drop in gross profit margin was mainly attributed by the rise in
commodity and raw material prices, appreciation of Renminbi and
rise in operating costs in particular labour costs.

Selling and distribution expenses increased by 7% to HK$37.7
million. As a percentage to sales turnover, selling and distribution
expenses maintained at 1.6% compared to last year. Administration
expenses decreased by 5% to HK$137.7 million. As a percentage
to sales turnover, administration expenses decreased from 6.5% to
5.7% compared to last year.

During the year, the Group invested in approximately HK$160.4
million for the acquisition of the whole of 9th Floor of AXA Centre
plus 2 parking spaces in Hong Kong. The investment property was
funded by internal resources and banking facility. The property is
located in Wanchai, Hong Kong and is currently leased to third
parties. The rental income received for the year was approximately
HK$3.8 million. As at 31 March 2012, this investment property was
revaluated at HK$181.1 million giving rise to an increase in fair value
of HK$20.7 million in the income statement.

Net Profit for the year decreased by 21% to HK$127.1 million (2011
restated: HK$161.2 million). Net profit margin decreased from 7.3%
10 5.3% compared to corresponding period last year.
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Chairman’s Statement

Prospects

[t has become increasingly difficult to predict the future prospects for
demand. We are seeing a slow pick-up in the sales turnover in the
US market. In contrast, the European markets are being shadowed
by the lingering uncertainties in the political and economic situations
of the Eurozone. All in all, the global economic and business
environment is still very volatile and challenging.

We would seek growth opportunities through new customers and
new product categories. Unfortunately, we would still be confronted
by high raw material costs, appreciation of Renminbi, rising
operating costs and labour costs. As such, cost and productivity
efficiency improvements would remain our top priorities through
implementation of semi-automation, lean manufacturing concepts
and projects and stringent cost control measures.

We are fully aware of the challenges and difficulties lying ahead.
Nonetheless, we believe, with our solid background and experience,
know-how, healthy financials, dedicated focus and commitment
to excellence, we would strive to create value to our shareholders,
employees and business partners.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had total assets of HK$1.78 billion
(2011: HK$1.38 billion) which was financed by current liabilities of
HK$676.7 million (2011: HK$518.6 million), long-term liabilities and
deferred taxation of HK$161.8 million (2011: HK$9.6 million) and
shareholders’ equity of HK$941.7 million (2011: HK$851.9 million).
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Chairman’s Statement

Liquidity and Financial Resources
(Continued)

The Group continued to maintain a strong balance sheet and a
healthy liquidity position. As at 31 March 2012, the Group held
HK$358.4 million (2011: HK$316.4 million) in cash and bank
deposits. They were mainly placed in Renminbi and US dollar
short term deposits, except for temporary balances held in other
currencies as required pending specific payments. For the year
ended 31 March 2012, the Group generated net cash inflow from
operating activities of HK$227.9 million (2011: HK$59.3 million). As
at the same date, total borrowings were HK$179.4 million (2011:
HK$552,000) and the gearing ratio (ratio of total borrowings to
shareholders’ equity) was 19% (2011: 0.06%).

We continue to apply stringent control over the working capital
cycle. The inventory balance as at 31 March 2012 increased from
HK$87.4 million to HK$93.8 million in line with the increase in
sales turnover. The trade receivables balance as at 31 March 2012
decreased from HK$516.7 million to HK$509.4 million. The trade
payables balance as at 31 March 2012 increased from HK$252.1
million to HK$384.4 million.

Funding for day-to-day operational working capital and capital
expenditures are to be serviced by internal cash flow and available
banking facilities. For the year ended 31 March, 2012, the group
invested approximately HK$160 million in an investment property
located in Hong Kong and HK$207 million (2011: HK$80 million)
in plant and machinery, moulds and tools, equipment, computer
systems and other tangible assets for expansion and upgrade
to our manufacturing facilities. The Group’s capital expenditures
were funded by internal resources and bank loans. The capital
expenditure budget for 2012/13 is approximately HK$72 million.
With a healthy financial position and available banking facilities, the
Group is able to provide sufficient financial resources for our current
commitments, working capital requirements, further expansions
of the Group’s business operations and future investment
opportunities, as and when required.
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Chairman’s Statement

Liquidity and Financial Resources
(Continued)

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
Renminbis, Euros and British Pounds. Currently the Group does
not implement hedging activity to hedge against foreign currency
exposure. However, we will closely monitor foreign currency
exposure and consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March, 2012, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

Currently, the Group employs approximately 5,500 employees. The
majority of our employees work in the PRC. The Group remunerated
our employees based on their performances, experiences and
prevailing market rates while performances bonus are granted
on a discretionary basis. Share options may also be granted to
employees based on individual performance and attainment of
certain set targets.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere appreciation to our employees, shareholders
and business associates for their contribution and support
throughout the year.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Cheung Lun, aged 84, is the founder and Chairman of the
Group. He has more than 50 years of management and technical
experience in the industry. He is responsible for formulating the
Group’s overall strategic planning and development.

Cheung Shu Wan, aged 51, is the Managing Director of the Group.
He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the Group in 1983.
He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from the University
of London, England. He is responsible for the sales & marketing,
research & development and engineering functions of the Group.
He also assists the Chairman in corporate strategic planning and
development.

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, aged 54, is the Executive Director
of the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined
the Group in 1984. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science
from Kingston Polytechnic, England. She is in charge of the overall
manufacturing operations of the Group.

Cheung Lai See, Sophie, aged 49, is the Executive Director of
the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the
Group in 1995. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from
the University of London, England and a master degree in Business
Management from the City University, England. She is responsible
for the financial and administration functions of the Group.

Cheung Pui, aged 64, is the Executive Director of the Group and
joined the Group in 1963. He has over 45 years of experience in the
plastic injection moulding industry. He is responsible for all technical
aspects of plastic injection moulding activities of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan How Chun, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Directors in September 2004. She has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and administration. She holds a
Bachelor degree in Commerce and a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Windsor in Canada and a PhD
degree in Management from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Lai Ah Ming, Leon, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in December 1995. He is a solicitor majoring
in commercial and property works.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors
(Continued)

Lo Chung Mau, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in November 1997. Professor Lo is a surgeon and
is currently the Chin Lan Hong Professor and Head of Department of
Surgery of the University of Hong Kong.

Senior Management

Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, aged 52, is the General Manager of
Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited. He is the son of Mr. Cheung
Lun and joined the Group in 1983. He obtained a degree in Bachelor
of Science from the University of Wales, England. He is responsible
for the manufacturing management and control of the company.

Cheung Shu Sang, William, aged 47, is the Director of Research
and Development of the Group. He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun
and joined the Group in 1994. He holds a BSc degree in Computing
Science and a MSc degree in Management Science, both at Imperial
College London. He also holds a PhD degree in Automation from the
University of Bristol, and is a member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers. He is responsible for the research and development
function of the Group.

Chung Chi Yin, aged 49, is the Director of Engineering of the Group
and joined the Group in 1990. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of
Science in Product Design and Technology from The Open University
of Hong Kong. He is responsible for the product development of the
Group.

Kwok Ka Lee, Carrie, aged 44, is the General Manager of Conan
Electric Manufacturing Limited and joined the Group in 1990. She
obtained a degree in Bachelor of Business (Transport and Logistics
Management) from Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology. She is
responsible for the manufacturing management and control of the
company.

Leung Mun Keung, aged 53, is the General Manager of Conan
Electric Manufacturing Limited. He joined the Group in 1991 and
has over 30 years of experience in manufacturing of electrical home
appliances. He is responsible for the manufacturing management
and control of the company.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continuea)

Li Wai Ho, aged 48, is the Director of Sales and Marketing
and joined the group in 2012. He possesses a master degree
in management from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
bachelor degree in engineering from Manchester University in United
Kingdom. He has over 17 years of experience in various functions in
Multinational Corporation. He is responsible for sales and marketing
function of the group.

Tsang Wing Tong, Michelle, aged 45, is the General Manager of
Karan Electric Mfg., Limited and joined the Group in 1987. She is
responsible for the manufacturing management and control of the
company.

Tsui Wing Keung, aged 56, is the Moulds and Tools Manager of
the Group and joined the Group in 1992. He has over 20 years of
experience in plastic injection mould making. He is responsible for
the management of the mould making operation for plastic injection
moulds.

Wong Lai Yung, aged 50, is the Finance and Account Manager
of the Group and joined the Group in 2006. She holds a master
degree of Business Administration and a master degree of Corporate
Governance of The Open University of Hong Kong. Ms. Wong is
currently a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Certified Tax Adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
She is responsible for all the financial and accounting aspects of the
Group.

Wong Mei Lin, aged 49, is the Director of Administration and
Personnel of the Group and joined the Group in 2000. She obtained
a Higher Certificate in Company Secretaryship and Administration
from Hong Kong Polytechnic. She is responsible for the human
resources and administration management of the Group.

Yasuhiro Terada, aged 50, is the Marketing Manager. He joined the
Group in 1993 and has over 20 years of experience in marketing of
electrical home appliances. He is responsible for the Group’s sales
& marketing functions for Pacific Region (including America and
Japan).
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2012.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
34.

An interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share amounting to
approximately HK$8,386,000 was paid to the shareholders
during the year. The directors now recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK$12.5 cents per share to the shareholders
on the register of numbers on 7 September 2012, amounting to
approximately HK$41,929,000, and the retention of the remaining
profit.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest suppliers and customers are as follows:

EEgREARABE_ZT—-F=H
T BLEFEZFREEERGEE M

SEEE

ARR T —RAREERRAR ARHEARE
BRE - HXEZMBARZEKFRGAH
B EEM L34 -

FEFaEN D

AEBBE-_T——F=A=1+—HL#F
BzRERFMAEZFEAZHWER-

FR - RRERN S B S FR2.551 0 A
RIR B 2 X584 /58,386,000 T - EE €
EERRARBARBER1258IF -F
——FNATtHBIBRERAMZARE B4
41,929,000/ 7T M AR BB 82 i A

TEEFRHEER

AEBESAREALEFPZBEENMHE
BTG A DT

Purchases EEE
— the largest supplier —mAHER 18%
— five largest suppliers combined — A REEEAE 31%
Sales 5 & 2R
— the largest customer R AEE 42%
— five largest customers combined —RAKRKEEAG 94%
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Major Customers and Suppliers (continuead)

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 120.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In addition to the retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the Company which
were available for distribution to shareholders at 31 March 2012
were HK$162,234,000 (2011: HK$203,565,000).

FEXFREER @

EWE WEIBEALRRRE ERET
&R AR AINE%RA 2 I ) KA
(BRI A L A RES 2T
(2 -

PBEHME

ERASEEBENEMBRFEECEE &
ElBEBEHNEI20H

SN

BRALAZBAR
s B 27 -

HEENGEAVH

FARAARBALENBARHMEREE HE
FBERIANLQFMER ETES -

2 B AR Ik

BRREBRMIN BREAEE-NN—FAF
& (BETAR) - MABRBRITAIED IR - AR
ATAIERSURM B DR B A B & -
fid

(@ MWEEDREREEEERIHAE X

) EHEAZREEEHALINERBEMN
N E B BT MR 5 B iR 2 A8

BEERARNPAR-_E——F=/F=+—
B a5k T IR 2 15 5162,234,0007%8
7T (= Z ——%: 203,565,000/ 7T ) °

13




14

Allan International Holdings Limited T2 fwEIBR & B AR 2 &

Directors’ Report

Investment Properties

During the year, the Group acquired an investment property
located in Hong Kong for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$160,353,000. In addition, on 1 December 2011, a piece of land
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), which previously
recognised as prepaid lease payments was transferred to investment
properties due to the change of usage. Details of the movement
of investment properties of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$207 million
on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment principally to
expand and upgrade its manufacturing facilities. In additions, the
construction of the new plant in Huizhou City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC has further completed parts of the factory buildings
during the year ended 31 March 2012 therefore the corresponding
construction costs capitalised in construction in progress, amounted
to approximately HK$58 million (2011: HK$9 million) was transferred
to factory buildings, plant and machinery and furniture, fixtures
and equipment during the year. The Group obtained the ownership
certificate for the related land use rights certificate during the year.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REW=E

FR-AEE DR & X E 160,353,000
TTEAMRE BN —HREMSE LN R
—E——F+-fF—R8 —BURPEAR

HABE ([PEDO L URTEER AR
ﬁ%ﬂ% B AAAGCEEMEERERE
M - REB 2 IREVMEEHFBENEGE
Mg mEEMTE5-

F N ANEE E A 4207,000,0008 TR E
ME - BELREUNERTRRERELEER
Mo b IR EARLRE ([FRE])
BREBENTZ2HBEERBE=S—=
FZA=T—HLFEE—FTHKHBNHLT
B MAFERNEHEIAERIRELD
58,000,000/ 7t ( =& ——4 : 9,000,000/%
TIZERBRETRYE  B/FE R H R
B RE - KERRE SEEERIUEBEN T
Hh {5 FRHERE o

AKEBRARBIZYE BELRXEZMHE
EHNEMED Z IBERENGETERES
MzE16 o
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Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Cheung Lun

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
Mr. Cheung Pui

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chan How Chun

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Ms. Cheung
Lai Chun, Maggie and Professor Lo Chung Mau shall retire by
rotation at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each director (except for the Chairman of the
Board and/or the Managing Director) is the period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EERESRBESYN

FRAERAREEREAARRFZERTHT:

HITES
Rim oA
R EE
RER L
KRBTt
SREFSE A

BUFHTES
REFE L
TR S
EREXHE

REBARNRBARARIFESTIR REP XL R
ERXHBERANKETZBFARE LKE
TR ERSFHRERET-

REBEARBzARMAA B2 (KEFE
TRER/ REFEEE) 2 EHEERBE
R/

EERRBEFASHREETZARANES
BEEANAKEAEMMNE AR
R—FRARIEMBAFEL@E CEERER
5N Z BRAE B K
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

At 31 March 2012, the interests of the directors and chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
were notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of ordinary shares held

Personal
Name Capacity interest
#E ) BARR
Mr. Cheung Lun Founder of discretionary trust -
RRxE PRETZHILA
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan Beneficial Owner 49,449,335
RERLE ERBEEA
Beneficiary of trust
BREREA
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie Beneficial Owner 600,000
REYRT ERBEAA
Beneficiary of trust
FHEXHA

EERTETHRAERKRMD
HEE R - EREE R R
=]

RZE—ZF=A=+—H KRAEEK
FETHRABRARGIREBE QR (EE
RBEFLAEGRN (TEHFRBEGR])E
XVER) MR 0 - R R EEZHEB R
BESRBEGNEXVEETRESD EE
MERRNARBEBHEXZAERAT ([H
R BOERSAR (BREESEEEIESF R
HIE GO 2 ZF B BREBIAA R R 2
BEAR)  RLBRARFERELFLAE
1& 51 553521478 B 17 2 B 50 filt R A 4 2 50K
B SBREBE LM ARESETELSRFHEE
SR (MREFRD) 2 A EBAEARRT R
Bt ZPTR R SOR BN T -

RATREREEIOCGETZEER

Approximate %

FECRTEBRYA of the issued

Other share capital

interest Total  of the Company

fER7

EBTRHZ

Hitg By R

148,529,960 148,529,960 44.28%
(Note)
(Hit)

148,529,960 197,979,295 59.02%
(Notg)
(Hiit)

148,529,960 149,129,960 44.46%
(Note)
(Hi)
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

EERETETHRAERKRMD
MEERG - EEE S RK

B @)

(Continued)
Number of ordinary shares held Approximate %
FECRTEBREA of the issued
Personal Other share capital
Name Capacity interest interest Total  of the Company
ERAR
BRTRGZ
i3] &t fHAER A% By BHEI
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie Beneficial Owner 1,258,000 148,529,960 149,787,960 44.66%
REHZL ERBEEA (Note)
Beneficiary of trust (Hit)
BREREA
Mr. Cheung Pui Beneficial Owner 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.30%
RERE ERBERA
Note: KiaF -

The references to 148,529,960 shares relate to the same block of shares
in the Company, of which 134,821,960 shares are held by Allan Investment
Co. Limited (“AICL"), 7,658,000 shares are held by Commence Investment
Limited (“CIL") and 6,050,000 shares are held by Unison Associates Limited
(“UAL”"). AICL and CIL are owned as to 89.0% and 100% respectively
by UAL. Mr. Cheung Lun is the settlor of The Cheung Lun Family Trust
(“Trust”). Credit Suisse Trust Limited as trustee of the Trust holds 100% of
the shareholding of UAL and the discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust are,
among others, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms.
Cheung Lai See, Sophie.

bt BT e & 2 148,529,960 A8 A & R 17 - B 45
B — & {7 # 5 - H 71 134,821,960/% A% 19 M =
REERAA ([RtmiRE])FE 7,658,000
RO EMEIEEERAR ([RBRE]FE
X26,050,0000% % 1 B3 Unison Associates Limited
(TUALD)#H B -k & 289.0%# &5 I Al &£
% & 2100%4E 25 FAUALTE B ° 5K i 55 £ 2 The
Cheung Lun Family Trust ([Trust]) 2 BfE& F
A ° Credit Suisse Trust LimitedATrustZ {55E A
1 H100% 2 UALARAE @ TrustZ Al BE X 2 A R
EREREE KRBT RREHZ+-
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continueq)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives,
nor their associates, of the Company had, as at 31 March 2012,
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the scheme.

EERTETHRAERKRMD
MR - EREE S RK

¢ 7

BRIAEFERN RRAIZCESTREENT
BABSKEBMBAL N_FT—=—F=A4
=+—H 2ERARBHEBENR (F
BRABFRBAEGMEXVE) 2 Kin - B
RinskEEZY  HEBEREZES RS
FEXVEBET7 R FE857 B /A M A AR N 7 F R
Pl SAR IR 38 75 K B B 14 0 8835216 7B 78 A
ZAGBI P B R - SRR EESF R Z IR TE
RBAMARRI Rz EmIOAR (BIE
RERZE 75 RGN Z Z B G EBRR
IRBEA I ERIKE) ©

BT E

AR Z BB SFRHNG A HRE
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Arrangement to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the share option scheme set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Appointment of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities
on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance and Connected
Transactions

Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Conan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with
Fair Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Fair Pacific Limited
granted to Conan a tenancy in respect of certain land in Lilin,
Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, Huizhou City, the
PRC at a monthly rent of HK$82,000. The tenancy agreement
was for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2010 and
renewable up to year 2028 on every 5 years. The total amount of
rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of this agreement was
HK$984,000.

BEROSIEZ 2ZH

BN ARG MRS E M E2sz kg
90 AR A SEAL AP B A R F
SEIAZE RARRERAEBEALRLR
BIREMAR 2B HESF M E -

BYFHITESZER

ARREEEZTBILFATESTSARE N
ZHERE RTNENAMRIES EMARA
(TR BI) B3 ABMGMR E 2 B - &
RARF 2RBUFRITEFTHR/BILA
4o

EENEAXGNZEBEREE

R

FREXEEBRAR ([EfR]) A2 d
ZEEREWBAR  HEBEHBRAFRL
—HEMEY - BEERATNREMERE (AR
AZTERR)2EHBHBAR REZ
M#) BEERARSLNHEEMNH
= B Ul R SR B IR AR 2 B0 T AR
T Ffs - AH82,0008 Loz BAHR T —
TEMA—ARASG REFELEREFE
WEE-_T - \F - ARERZBEHORREF
MR 5 2 7 & 4858 /3984,000/8 7T ©
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance and Connected
Transactions (continueq)

Allan Plastics Mfg., Limited (“APML”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with Income
Village Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, pursuant to
which Income Village Limited granted to APML a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin Village, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial
Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of
HK$17,000. The tenancy agreement was for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2011. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$204,000.

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Karan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
AICL, pursuant to which AICL granted to Karan a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development
Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of HK$75,000. The
tenancy agreement was for a term of 3 years commenced from 1
April 2011. The total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in
respect of this agreement was HK$900,000.

HEHESRELBRAT (EEHE") , a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
Mr. Cheung Pui, pursuant to which Mr. Cheung Pui granted to 2[5
#3# a tenancy in respect of certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-
Tech Industrial Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a total
monthly rent of RMB45,000. This tenancy agreement was for a term
of 3 years commenced from 1 July 2011. The total amount of rent
paid for the year by the Group in respect of this agreement was
RMB540,000 (equivalent to HK$653,400).

The independent non-executive directors confirm that the
transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of its business, on normal commercial terms, and
in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Emolument Policy

The Company has set up a remuneration committee. The
remuneration committee is responsible for developing the
remuneration policy and reviewing the remuneration packages of
the directors and senior management and make recommendations
to the Board which are determined by reference to the performance
of the individuals, the Group, market practices and conditions with
a view to retain and motivate executives to pursue the Group’s
operation.

Substantial Shareholders

So far is known to any director or chief executive of the Company,
at 31 March 2012, shareholders (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
or had otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity
BRR & 514
Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee
fEFEA
UAL Held by controlled corporation

Pzl c RERA

Beneficial Owner

EmlEAA
AICL Beneficial Owner
TREE EmlEAA

N BR

RAAREKAFMEEG - FTMEESAR
SIEHFMBE LRI EFEHSRAERE 2
FB - YRESRERER KRMHERET
ZRB CAEEZEE TIHEHRTRE
o BREBREBHEHEIEERAER
B e

FERR

RARBEERRHTRABMA R

——fF=ZRA=1+—B RARQ Tkﬁ%@ﬁ
B B R BE 5 R E G PIFEXVE 2
K37 ARG AR A R R K FE KL EH R
RRBIRES R E GG £IBHRETFNE
MR E MR QR NERIORR 2 BR
(ARREZAZBITHABRINOT

FTERRRADARDZ2HR

Approximate

Number of % of
ordinary shares shareholding
tREZ

EBRR G BAE
148,529,960 44.28%
142,479,960 42.48%
6,050,000 1.80%
134,821,960 40.19%
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Substantial Shareholders (continueq)

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company (Continued)

Name of shareholder Capacity
BRRAMH 51
Webb, David Michael Beneficial Owner

Held by controlled corporation

Pzl z ARRA

Beneficial Owner
EanEAA

Preferable Situation Assets Limited

Note:

The reference to 26,886,000 shares above are held by Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. Webb, David Michael.
According to a notice filed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, the shareholding
of Preferable Situation Assets Limited in the Company was increased from
26,826,000 shares to 26,886,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

FERE®

FTERRRADARDZ2HR (&)

Approximate

Number of % of
ordinary shares shareholding
tREZ
EBERR G BRRDH
6,726,000 2.01%
26,826,000 7.99%
(Note)
(H1iz)
26,886,000 8.02%
(Note)
(Hfiz)

3l BT & #926,886,0000% i% 17 1 Webb, David
Michaelst 4 % #& ¥ il Z Preferable Situation
Assets Limited# & iR & H % B & (& 5] EXVED
FT 2 2340 Preferable Situation Assets Limited
RARREFIRHE 2 KR % H26,826,0000% 18 i =
26,886,000[% °

BREXHBEEN R_E—-—_F=A
=B #MEBEEAAL (KARARESERE
ETBABKRIN) GHEARFHARIER
7 M E IR BIEXVERE2 5 B30 & 2 X
ARAR AR TR RCH N AR RIRE 7 & M
E1RPIZE3B6HEF 2 ELMANARFI
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$318,000.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 24 to 31.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, the directors confirm that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 March 2012 as required by the Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Lun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2012
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and the sustained development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate,
all code provisions set out in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in
the CG Code of the Listing Rules. The Company has, throughout
the year ended 31 March 2012 and up to the date of publication
of the annual report, applied and complied with most of the Code
Provisions save certain deviations from the Code Provisions in
respect of code provisions A4.1, A.4.2 and E.1.2 details of which are
explained below.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-compliance with
the Model Code during the year under review and they have all
confirmed that they had fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises of five Executive Directors, being Mr. Cheung
Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing Director), Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie and Mr.
Cheung Pui; three Independent Non-executive Directors, being Dr.
Chan How Chun, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and Professor Lo Chung
Mau. Biographical details, which include relationships among
members of the Board, are provided in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of the annual report.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-
today management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

° Formulating the Group’s long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof
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Board of Directors (continueq)

° Approval of interim and year end dividend

° Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
° Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

° Monitoring the performance of the management

° Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategies
that have been approved.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year and additional
meetings or telephone conferences are convened as and when the
Board considers necessary. During the year, eight board meetings
were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance record in the year are
as follows:

Attendance/

Executive Directors No. of meeting

Mr. Cheung Lun 8/8
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan 8/8
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie 8/8
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 8/8
Mr. Cheung Pui 8/8

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chan How Chun 6/8
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 6/8
Professor Lo Chung Mau 6/8

The Company has complied with the Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent Non-executive Directors and one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related finance management expertise. Each
of the Independent Non-executive Director has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Board considered that the duties of the Managing Director
(“MD”) were no different from that required of a chief executive
officer stipulated under the code provision A.2 of the Code. The
management would regard that the term MD will have the same
meaning as the chief executive officer of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director, who is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board,
and ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and
where required, resolved by the Board timely and constructively.

The MD of the Board is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to run the Group’s business and day-to-day operation,
and implement the Group’s strategy with respect to the achievement
of its business objectives with the assistance of the Executive
Directors and senior management.

Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, none of the three independent non-executive directors
of the Company is appointed for a specific term. This constitutes
a deviation from the GC Code. In accordance with the provisions
of the Bye-laws of the Company, any director appointed by the
Board during the year shall retire and submit themselves for re-
election at the first general meeting immediately following his/her
appointment. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-
third, shall retire from office. The directors to retire by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are similar to those in the GC Code.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting after their appointment, and
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Appointment and Re-election of
Directors (continuea)

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman and/or
Managing Director is not subject to retirement by rotation or taken
into account on determining the number of Directors to retire. This
constitutes a deviation from the GC Code. As continuation is a key
factor to the successful implementation of any long term business
plans, the Board believes that, the present arrangement is most
beneficial to the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established Remuneration Committee on 12
March 2012 with written terms of reference as stated in Code
B.1.3 of the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Remuneration
Committee consists of two Independent Non-Executive Directors
and Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
overseeing the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for determining the remuneration standards of Directors and senior
management, reviewing and approving remuneration plan, deciding
bonus and reward system of the Directors and senior management.
It takes into account factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies with similar size and trade, education background
and qualification of each Director and senior management,
time commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior
management.

TRERKRE

BEECEERER »

BREARBZ ABMA - ARBZEER
SEFREENBBRESE NEEES
BREABRKIEBFEEA  BRECEST
AIBEFIRZ - IR FEERR AT ERK
EEBKFINTIERNR EFGHE BEA
M ZHERANRRAZ RO BEN HRA
B

YMEES

ARFBR=B——F=A+=BRIHH
ZEE WA L RAINEK14<FAIB.1.315
F# EERERE - FHMEREaREE
STIEBATE BN - R S AR B B
ex-

FINZ BB REERESLER 2 HMBER
BRI RFUREEMEESEREREEE
FHFE-FHEB RN AERETEENS
BB 2 FrBR2E - 26D Mt H AT &
UBORTEEE M= R E T 2 fEAL K 22 5l
- EEFHMEKEBREREREBE 2
HBRARX 2 HEKF BEERSRE
BEZHEBSSRER UREEMRAZ
RELBESEHERE-

27




28

Allan International Holdings Limited T2 fwEIBR & B AR 2 &

Corporate Governance Report

Nomination of Directors

Currently, the Company does not have a nomination committee.
The Board will identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members when necessary. The Board will give due consideration to
the suitability of a candidate for directorship after taking into account
of his/her experience, qualification and other relevant factors. All
candidates must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08
and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company regards its Annual General Meeting as an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and its shareholders.
All Directors and external auditors make an effort to attend the
Annual General Meeting to address shareholders’ queries. The
Company also responds to requests for information and queries
from the shareholders and investors and welcomes the views of
shareholders on matter affecting the Group and encourages them
to attend shareholders’ meeting to communicate any concerns they
might have with the Board.

Both the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee had not attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 5 August 2011. The Chairmen will endeavour to
attend all future annual general meetings of the Company unless
unexpected or special circumstances prevent them from doing so.

ERERKRE

EEZR?A

B ARBIYERERZEE MEFEH
REFEEHNERBEZAEBRALTRAE
EEIKB -EFEREBRERREAZL
B BRMEBHEBERRUREERSES
REEERE -FMAREATLANAS LD
R AIF3.08 3. 00 sl Z 1R - I R AT
RBUFPTEFZHREATBERTAG LT
HAIE3ABMGRATE 2 R

BERRZEE

RAEERBEFAERREHEFTTERR
ERABzHE 2RESRINERHUNY
BOHERRBFAES AR EERER -
A7) Bl fE R R B R B B R EAVE # 2 B SR
RA BUBRREZEREZFHERER
MR REFERRAS  ERRERAE
EEREMBIZER-

EEgIFERERZEGIRYELEARAR
ARZE——F N \ARLBETZRRBFK
T BRIFERERB S RBERMLEER R
FARBBERzZBREBFRE BRXE
PIRBENHEZERE



Annual Report 2011/2012 —E——FZ_-_F—_FF#

Corporate Governance Report

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration payable to the
Company’s auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as
follows:

Services rendered Fees payable

HK$'000

Audit services 1,933
Non-audit services

Review of interim results 287

Taxation services 255

Audit of occupational retirement scheme 24

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term
of reference, which describes the authority and duties of the
Committee, as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the GC Code.

The Audit Committee will meet at least twice each year. During the
year, the Audit Committee met twice considering the annual results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 and the
interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 September
2011, assessing any changes in accounting policies and practices,
major judgmental areas and compliance with applicable legal and
accounting requirements and standards, discussing with the auditor
of the Company on internal control.
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Audit Committee (continueq)

Details of Committee members and their attendance records are
listed as below:

Attendance/
Committee member No. of meeting
Dr. Chan How Chun (Independent Non-executive 2/2
Director & Chairman of
the Audit Committee)
(Independent Non-executive Director 2/2

and Chairman of

Mr. Lai Ah Ming Leon

Remuneration Committee)

Professor Lo Chung Mau  (Independent Non-executive Director) 2/2

Director’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statement

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (i) selecting suitable
accounting policies and applying the selected accounting policies
consistently with the support of reasonable and prudent judgement
and estimates.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
set out on pages 32 to 33 of this Annual Report.

Internal Controls

The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain a sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and the Group as a whole and to ensure
strict compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system and reporting to the Board.
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Internal Controls (continueq)

The Group’s internal control system comprises a well established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards.
Areas of responsibilities for each business and functional unit are
clearly defined to ensure effective checks and balances. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for ensuring the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication. The procedures provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.
Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the Audit Committee and the Board carried out an
overview on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group. No material internal control aspects of any significant
problems were noted. Both the Audit Committee and the Board
were satisfied that the internal control system of the Group had
functioned effectively during the year under review. During the
annual review, the audit committee also reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.
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Deloitte.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
ALLAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allan
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to
119, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2012,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 June 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Increase in fair value of an investment
property

Interest on bank borrowings

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

Other comprehensive income

Gain on revaluation

Deferred tax liability arising on
gain on revaluation

Exchange differences arising on
translation

Net adjustments on available-for-sale
investments

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share
Basic
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HKS37.9 cents

2012 2011

—E——fF —E——F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B at FET FETT
(Restated)

(&%)

7 2,416,920 2,220,511
(2,105,080) (1,853,944)

311,840 366,567

8 6,717 5,197
10 (7,970) (1,948)
(37,743) (85,297)
(137,671) (144,394)

20,747 9,565
12 (2,469) (59)
153,451 199,631
11 (26,314) (38,400)
12 127,137 161,231
17,638 -

(5,346) -

9,666 8,897

(597) 149

21,361 9,046

148,498 170,277

14

HK48.1 cents
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At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=HA=+—H
2012 2011 2010
—B--f% T C—T-%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt FET FHET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment properties ®E Y 15 210,989 = 11,300
Property, plant and equipment ME BB NMEE 16 406,419 247,345 195,436
Prepaid lease payments B EEFIA 17 28,185 32,319 32,086
Club debentures FHEESH 18 13,866 13,866 3,836
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 19 8,561 8,776 7,895
Other financial assets Hin B & E 20 6,565 4,841 3,110
Deposits paid for acquisition of ENEBEDE BEK
property, plant and equipment B-HKA 10,135 56,221 7,085
Deposits paid for acquisition of ENEERENERS
an investment property - 23,057 -
684,720 386,425 260,748
Current assets B EE
Inventories FE 21 93,781 87,414 61,331
Trade receivables and bills receivable U E 5 8RR K BN E & 22 509,353 516,672 378,216
Other receivables H i fE AR 3R 22 107,334 58,407 39,986
Mould deposits paid BENEERT® 22,245 10,143 5,659
Prepaid lease payments B HEEFIA 17 693 754 758
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 19 = 2,364 1,622
Other financial assets Hip B & E 20 1,513 = 2,998
Tax recoverable JERFIIA 2,210 1,577 1,937
Time deposits and deposits placed EMERRIFERIRTTR
with banks and financial institutions TREERR 23 169,683 212,094 375,354
Bank balances and cash BOEEFERES 23 188,700 104,340 107,115
1,095,512 993,765 974,976
Current liabilities B aE
Trade payables and bills payable ENEHERRENER 24 384,420 252,133 217,142
Other payables and accruals H b & T BR R R BT RS 182,108 196,067 189,791
Mould deposits received BEREREET® 35,094 24,764 15,009
Tax payable TR I8 41,251 45,084 38,735
Secured bank loans HHRITER
— due within one year ——FRNE B 25 33,779 552 7,727
676,652 518,600 468,404
Net current assets MEVEEFE 418,860 475,165 506,572
Total assets less current liabilities BEERMEAE 1,103,580 861,590 767,320
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2012

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Secured bank loans

— due after one year

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

FRBAE
EIEFIA
ERRTER

——FRHH

BEFE

BARR#E
AR
i

Notes

HiiE

26
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 119 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25

June 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie

REY L+
Director

EF

e ISR R

R-E——F=A=+—H

2012 2011 2010
—R-=F —F—5F Z=ZE-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
(Restated)

(E51)

16,185 9,649 7,954
145,657 - 552
161,842 9,649 8,506
941,738 851,941 758,814
33,543 33,543 33,543
908,195 818,398 725,271
941,738 851,941 758,814

HRFEMEE1190BEZEEMBREEZER
B CFANATHREEE e ERE
HRE WAETHESREES:

Cheung Lai See, Sophie
REHZE
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity %5 #E 8 5
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BHE—_T——F=A=1+—HILtFE
Capital  Investment Property
Share Share redemption  revaluation  revaluation  Translation Dividend Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
3 TN RE mx
BA wER EEREE EfRE  EMREE ERRE RERE  REE7 fan
HKS000  HKS000 — HKS000  HK$000  HKSUOO0O — HKSOO0 — HKSOO0  HKSO00  HK$000
FAT FET TET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Restatea) ~ (Restatea)
(25)) (23))
At 1 April 2010 R=E-F4MA—-A 33,543 109,884 793 1,239 - 14,962 60,378 538,015 758,814
Profit for the year RERRF - - - - - - - 161,231 161,231
Exchange differences arising on BER25|EH
translation ERER - - - - - 8,897 - - 8,897
Fair value gain on avallable-for-sale Al &R ERAF(E
investments Z B - - - 34 - - - - 34
Investment revaluation reserve RABMHEENIE
released on disposal of AEHERERED
available-for-sale investments - - - 115 - - - - 115
Other comprehensive income AEFEME AN
for the year - - - 149 - 8,897 - - 9,046
Total comprenensive income REEEANELTE
for the year = = = 149 = 8,897 - 181281 170277
Dividend proposed for 2011 (mote 73) $tk% T ——FKE
(Hi#13) - - - - - - 50,315 (50,315) -
Dividends recognised as REDE RS
distribution fnote 1) (Hi#13) - - - - - - (60,378) (16,772) (77,150)
At 31 March 2011 and 1 April 2011 R=F——%
=R=+-REk
—T-—FmA-H 33,543 109,884 793 1,388 = 23,859 50,315 632,159 851,941
Profit for the year RERET = - - - - - - 127,137 127,137
Gain on revaluation note 1) BB (H:215) - - - - 17,638 - - = 17,638
Deferred tax liability arising on HERRAMEEL
gain on revaluation BB - - - - (5,346) - - - (5,346)
Exchange differences arising on BER25|EH 2
translation ERER - - - - - 9,666 - - 9,666
Fair value loss on available-for-sale ~ AT HERERATFEZ
investments BB - - - (108) - - - - (108)
Investment revaluation reserve RABMHEENIE
released on disposal of AEHERERED
available-for-sale investments - - - (489) - - - - (489)
Other comprehensive (expense) AEEEMRE
income for the year (%) s = - - (597) 12,292 9,666 - - 21,361
Total comprenensive income REEEANELE
for the year = = = (697 12,202 9,666 - 1137 148498
Dividend proposed for 2012 (note 13) $tk% —E——FK &
(Hi#13) - - - - - - 41929 (41,929) -
Dividends recognised as REDE RS
distribution (note 13) (Hi£13) - - - - - - (50,315) (8,386) (68,701)
At 31 March 2012 W=F-—#=A=1-H 33,543 109,884 793 791 12,292 33,625 41,929 708,981 941,738
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2012

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Increase in fair value changes of
an investment property

Interest expenses

Interest income

Net (gain) loss on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Net (gain) loss on financial assets
designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Write-off of property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables and
bills receivable

Increase in other receivables

Increase in mould deposits paid

Increase in trade payables and bills payable

(Decrease) increase in other payables and
accruals

Increase in mould deposits received

Cash generated from operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
enterprise income tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

:N_\ é IE- ﬁ

MER

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

REEE

B %4 A1 g )

T

&~ 70 & 2R 0E 5

Y BB REEITE
B WE 2 N FEREE N

MBXH

B HA

HERHELERE (BF)
EEFER

EREREANTEFEZHBEE
(BH) EBEFE

HEWME BELREZET

LEESRPAICKERERE

TF &8
JEUS B 5 BR TR % e UK ZE g
(A0)

H A & YR TR AE AN

ENREZEIEMN

FEN B 5 8RR M BN R ARIE AN

HoAth A R R S JEAS R AN O )
il

B R B IR S 1N

REXBEL RS

B EFBFIEH

EffPEARLAME ([HE])
EEPBHR

RETHREEZRSFH

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
153,451 199,631
809 754
54,096 34,361
(20,747) (9,565)
2,469 59
(1,275) (1,210)
(489) 115
(228) 1,283
(1,773) (259)
2,597 504
188,910 225,673
(6,367) (26,083)
7,319 (138,456)
(48,927) (18,421)
(12,102) (4,484)
132,287 34,991
(13,959) 6,277
10,330 9,755
257,491 89,252
(20,168) (21,407)
(9,423) (8,589)
227,900 59,256




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2012

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Placement of time deposits and deposits placed
with banks and financial institutions

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of an investment property

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Additions of prepaid lease payment

Purchases of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Purchases of available-for-sale investments

Withdrawal of time deposits and deposits placed

with banks and financial institutions
Proceeds on disposal/redemption of
available-for-sale investments
Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received
Deposits paid for acquisition of
an investment property
Purchase of a club debenture
Proceeds on disposal of an investment property
Proceeds on redemption of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

NET (USED IN) CASH FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings raised
Dividend paid

Repayment of borrowings
Interest paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL

Annual Report 2011/2012 —E——FZ__F—_FF#

ml_\ é IE ﬁ

MER

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

REEH

R ERERRERRITR
RS

BEME BFENI&HE

BEREME

ENBEYDE BEREHBHE

Ta & IR AN

BAZBBERRATEREZ
MEEE

BEAHLERE

REUE TR RIFRIRITR
& BB K

HE BRI HEERE

HEWE BB RREMEHR

B2
ENBEREYMER®

BEHe®EES

HERBEYEMAEHIA

HEMEBESRATEFELZ
M EE A

REED (¥ SRS FH
BMEEE

FTIGIRITE R

EfAE

BEER

2 FE

BMETHRE (R REFE

REeRBSESEEM(BD) FHE

ROA-—BzRERARLEHEER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH, R=B=+—BzRE¢REL%5EH

represented by bank balances and cash

HE HERRTEFLRE

2012 2011
—2—=F —F——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
(152,270) (1,010,053)
(151,240) (73,338)
(137,296) -
(10,135) (66,221)
(8,102) -
(3,133) (3,125)
(1,556) (3,124)
195,304 1,172,598
4,004 1,556
1,894 2,496
1,275 1,210

- (23,057)

- (10,030)

- 20,865

- 3,128
(261,255) 22,905
198,850 -
(58,701) (77,150)
(19,965) (7,727)
(2,469) (59)
117,715 (84,936)
84,360 (2,775)
104,340 107,115
188,700 104,340

39
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The immediate holding company is Allan
Investment Co. Limited, a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong; and its ultimate holding company is Credit Suisse
Trust Limited, who is a trustee of The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (“Trust”) and the discretionary beneficiaries of the Turst
are, among others, the directors of the Company, Mr. Cheung
Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms. Cheung
Lai See, Sophie. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacture and
distribution of household electrical appliances.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations applied
in current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
HKFRSs 2010

HKAS 24 (as revised
in 2009)

Related Party Disclosures

31

mEMBRESHE

E_E-_F=A=1+—BILFE

3

nveH

RRRRBEREFMKIAZRE
ERAR-HROEBEEBBMER S
ERAA L™ ([BRZFR]) - EHEE
BRARALEBIEERRLAT  REE
FE AR S B & A2 IR A F] & Credit
Suisse Trust Limited* AThe Cheung
Lun Family Trust ([Trust ] ) 215 A
TrustZ AJBEX m AR BEARAICES
REBEL RERLATRREHK
ToARRAFMMERE 2t R FEE
EHBNAFR [RRER] BHPH

E:go

AAANREBRAARBHLLE
BIRY - AHBARNEELH AR
RABFEES-

ire B mRITIAB TSR - IMARRAF]
2R G o

VB R a] I R IERT BB Bt
B E 2R ([ FEMBER

H2EA])

RAFERRANFHEIREBTEEM
BHRELER2E

AEE  AEEERT NIHEEER
fiag ([FESEAE])RimZH
I RBMERT BB s R -

BEBPHEREELL — T FBMhH 2 BB
Z1EFT SIS R 2 B
BAESFTAER BN 5 B
SE245%
(ZEENF

@ E4T)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR & B EEMEE

]
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations applied

in current year (Continueq)

Amendments to Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying
HKAS 12 Assets

Amendments to
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The Group has applied in the current year amendments to
HKAS 12 titled “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets”
in advance of their effective date (which are effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April 2012). Under the
amendments, investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment
property” are presumed to be recovered through sale for the
purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption
is rebutted in certain circumstances.

FERHIREIETE R
BmEED ([FRMBER
HEA]) @)
A 2 4 B B 0 37 5T R AR 4B AT B8 B
BHEEARRE ()
Esgiien BERE-KEEEEE
10857 1]
% (BREBE BEASAE 2 BRR
EREZEE)
—REEY
2T
B (AREBH LS TEENLBAR
EREBZEER)
—REE10%

BRANRTALE SN - NERERZHET K
RIETEBMBRESENHAKER
FERBEFEZUBREALMI KR
SERERAVBREMHCHRES
BUEEATE-

RS ENE12REERE - KRE
HEEE 2B

RAFE AEBERERAH (B
T-—_FNMA-HRBZASEFE
HiR) iR R A BB & st RIS 1258
DREFRIE : WA EE | 2 &7 - 1R
IRZIER] BAETERERIAM 5 - KR
BB ERIEI0R [REME] £
RPEEAFEZREMEZEBER
ERBEEFEEWRE - ERETHER TR
TR BRI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets (Continued)

The Group measures its investment properties using the fair
value model. On the application of the amendments to HKAS
12, the directors have not rebutted the presumption set out
in the amendments to HKAS 12. The directors reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
none of the Group’s investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. As a result, the
Group’s investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model have been presumed to be recovered through sale
for the purpose of measuring deferred taxes in respect of such
properties. Previously, the Group recognised deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of investment properties on the basis
that the tax consequences follow from the manner in which the
entity expects to recover the carrying amount of an asset.

The amendments to HKAS 12 have been applied
retrospectively, resulting in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities
being decreased by HK$1,758,000 as at 1 April 2010 with
the corresponding adjustment being recognised in retained
earnings. In addition, the application has resulted in the
Group’s income tax expense for the year ended 31 March
2011 being increased by HK$1,758,000 and profit for the year
ended 31 March 2011 being reduced by HK$1,758,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the application of the
amendments has resulted in the Group’s income tax expense
being reduced by HK$3,423,000, profit for the year ended
31 March 2012 being increased by HK$3,423,000 and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2012
being reduced by HK$4,468,000.

B

mEMBRESHE

E_E-_F=A=1+—BILFE

FE R # ] RERIET BB
BmEED ([FRMBER
HEA]) @)

B e RS 2RIE L RE - e
HBEE 2B (&)
AEEERAATEERBEREY
2 oA A R EER B 128 2 (53T
B W A S AIE 12
S BT R B BEDBRAL
A REMEES MEREAEEY
Y ) 4 R — B B R PO 4
MR EE T BAS EEFE (T
WIFEBEE) 2 LBHERFEE B
b SREHE AR E Y A W T EIER
EfE  EAATERRHEZEBY
20 BB AEANERE A A%
ARz ERERKEZEE Y EH
B2 R ER Y BRI A
Y N FEESHHAETRHE -

BB EHERE125REBHER B
R-_E—TFNA—BZ2AEEET
FiI8 8 &R 41,758,000 7T - HAHE
ARENRBEF AR - LI A
ZEERAEEHRE-T——F=
A=+—HLEFEZHREHRAEM
1,758,000 8 TRBE_T——F=H
=+—HIFE Zm MR 41,758,000
BIT e

BE_ZT——f#=A=+—HIF
B ERZIETERAEE 2SR
SR 3,423,000 L BEZT— =
FZRA=+—RHIEFEZ&EFEM
3,423,000 T RBE-_T——F=A
=T+—RIFEZEMEEKER D
4,468,000/ JT °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR & B M EEM T

For the year ended 81 March 2012 BE-T —F=-A=1t"HILHFE

2. Application of New and Revised 2. BRI RKBIEEH
Hong Kong Financial Reporting B EER ([BFEBM KR
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (Continued) %@EIJJ) (%)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax - Recovery of BB ERFE125FELERE - WE
Underlying Assets (Continued) HBAEEZET (&)
The effect of change in accounting policy described above on Lz @ BEREBHHAFE KRBT
the results and financial positions of the Group for the current FEZEBERVBRRAZZENT

and prior years by line items is as follows:

For the year ended

BETIHHLEFE
31.3.2012 31.3.2011
—E-C=F —EB——F
=A=+—H =HA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Decrease (increase) in taxation charge RER AR ZFIE
recognised in profit or loss SR A () 3,423 (1,758)
Increase (decrease) in profit for the period H & A3 ORid) 3,423 (1,758)
Increase in taxation charge recognised RE M 2 s R R
in other comprehensive income T8 7 32 N (4,468) -
Decrease in profit and total comprehensive 2 A % Fl) & 2 1 Wk 25 4858 0,
income for the period (1,045) (1,758)
Increase in deferred tax liabilities and EER IR B &8I0 &
total effects on net assets HEEEZFARE (1,045) -
Decrease in property revaluation reserve ) 55 5 1 1 1 R (4,468) -
Increase in retained profits 1R A i FI3E 0 3,423 =
Total effects on equity HESIMARE (1,045) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets (Continued)

The effect of change in accounting policy described above
on the financial position of the Group as at 1 April 2010 is as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities ELEWRIEAE

Total effects on net assets HEEEZBTE
Retained profits, total effects on equity RBEN HERZMETE

The effect of changes in accounting policies described above
on basic earnings per share is as follows:

e MR ESHE

BE—T——F=-A=1t—HILFE

FE A #5] R &1 5] BB B
B EER ([FEABMBER
HEA]) @)

BT ERE125RELEB H - K E
HEEE 2B (&)

Pz @t BRESHGHARER =
—TFEMA-B 2B EWT

As at As at
01.04.2010 01.04.2010
(Original
stated) Adjustment (Restated)
R-E-2F R-Z2-2F
mA—H mA—H
(REZ5) AR (E51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&7 T8 78T
9,712 (1,758) 7,954
757,056 1,758 758,814
536,257 1,758 538,015

riliz @t BREBDHEBRELRZF
FENT

For the year ended

BETIHBLEE

31.3.2012 31.3.2011

—E——F —ET——%

=ZA=+t—-B =A=+—H

HK cents HK cents

Bl JEA

Basic earnings per share before adjustment %Jﬂ%ﬁﬁ%§$ﬁ 1 36.9 48.6
Application of amendments to HKAS 12 ERBBEEAFE12R 215 1.0 (0.5)
Reported basic earnings per share EMRIBHRERRF 37.9 48.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKAS 1

HKAS 19

(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle!

Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets?®

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities!
Financial Instruments®

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures?®

Consolidated Financial
Statements!

Joint Arrangements'’

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities’
Fair Value Measurement'

Presentation of ltems of Other

Comprehensive Income*
Employee Benefits!

Separate Financial Statements!

mEMBRESHE

BE_T——E=A=1+—HIIEE

2. ERA#HTIRLIETEEBH
B EER ([FEABMBER
HEA]) @)

B HEMERE RERZHT REBITER

5t % 45 o5 22 B

AEEYERFERATIE QMER
REBZHET RBETREBHRE

]

BBHMBRE
A ZET

BBHMBRE
EAFTH
ZEF]

BARBRE
KR E95
BANBRE
EBETH R
Eo )
BANBRE
ERIE105
BEANBRE
EBIE11%
BARBRE
ERIE12%
BANBRE
EB|E135
BR LR
F1R 2B
BAG L
£1957
(ZF——F
&ERT)
BR LR
Fo7%
(ZT——F

BET)

“ETNFET——FEH
B BEMBREEAZ
FEYE

BE- B3MBER

BE-SREEEERARL
ERichi
THTA

BEMBREEN R 2B
MEAM A RBR R E

HRMBER

KRz

je=1l|

BEREMER B

AFEHE

Et2ANERE 225

ERRA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR & B M EEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-Z——F#=-A=+—HItFE
2. Application of New and Revised 2. BRI RKBIEEH
Hong Kong Financial Reporting B EER ([BFEBM KR
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq) HFEA )
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective EEMEMRERZHTREETES
(Continued) B EER (&)
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and BEg L HERGERE
(as revised in 2011) Joint Ventures! £085
(Z2——%
®ERT)
Amendments to HKAS 32  Offsetting Financial Assets and BAgEA CRHAERCRARZEIRE
Financial Liabilities® FI2R BT o
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production 5% (B8 7% BARBS EEMB 2 JFERKA
Phase of a Surface Mine' BERE
ZE8%9)
— 2B E20%
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January g RZTE—=F— A —AxkEERBRZF
2013 AR AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011 2 RZZE——F A —AKEEBHARZE
EHAR ARk -
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 9 RIE—hE— A -BHHEERRZEF
2015 & B AR
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 4 R-ZE——FtHA—AEBHRZTF
FEERR A e
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 RZZE—WOF—f—AsKEBHARZE
2014 ER v
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EEBYMBEREERFIN [T A/
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for RZZEZNFEMB 2 BBREREE
the classification and measurement of financial assets. AIERSIEEHEeREED EMTE
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the ZHFRE RN —EF B 2B EY
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for BHELENFEIRHEHERBESE

derecognition. METE2ARBUBRER ZHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE—_ZT——F=ZA=1+—HLFE
2. Application of New and Revised 2. EAMIRKETEEEH

B ER ([FEMKR
X8 ) ()

(== N P AN

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

EHEMERE RERZHTREBTER

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(Continued) B EER (&)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) BEEBUBHEERFIN [/ T A/
(#)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

BN REEAFN 2 ERREF
e

s FBEWHMEERNERMATE
BEEEFERER €@ T
H: ERIAE SBAZAEE
REMEE HRHYAREH
RAKRFEFE-RHHZ F
ERBETHR SR EHRA -
AR AR RS AR RN ARE
BASZNEMBARZTNRE
MZEBRE  —RNEREF
HIM A SR IR SH R AN FT 8 < T
BEEMEBRERBEARER
HigHmEHRARBIZATFER
BN RIEFEMBHRESE
AIIZE95% - B B8 AT LA AT 31 322
BREMEEKEZ2IIRAKRE
(YIEFIEEE) 2ERAFEE
B 0 -RENBREABERRE
YA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value
of a financial liability (designated as at fair value through
profit or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in
the Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 April 2015. Based on the analysis of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March
2012, the adoption of HKFRS 9 will affect the classification of
the Group’s available-for-sale investments and is not likely to
have significant impact on the amounts of the Group’s other
financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s
available-for-sale investments, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation -
Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to
deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted
provided that all of these five standards are applied early at the
same time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)
The directors anticipate that these five standards will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning on 1 April 2013. The application of
these five standards is not likely to have significant impact on
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 April 2013. The presentation
of items of other comprehensive income will be modified
accordingly when the amendments are applied in the future
accounting periods.

31
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The Standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-
level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets
and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in
the Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 April 2013 and that the application of
the new Standard is not likely to have material impact to the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
but result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

mEMBRESHE

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

FE R # ] RERIET BB
BmEED ([FRMBER
HEA]) @)

B R AE R 3 ST R ST E
B EEER (F)

BB R 135 [ A FEH
&)

BB R R 13RI EBA
FEHERATEH B RE Y B —
$53| o WORAIRE A TME  BUHEA
FEZIERLREBAFESLEY R
B - BB LR E 13K &
BT AR BRI RS
ABRE R AN AT EN ERENATE
HERBYAMIAEERESAT
ATHE M EERR BT
BB R R EI3EFB Y BE
BERETEAREEEASE - i
o0 LR (SRR A0S B RS8R o R BT
S SBIA RE/BTr4MIA
CERATEZER B RERRE
Y HEE B IS RS A1 3SR AR -
AREZBEN FEEEREME-

FRMBERELYNFIBRER T —=
FUA—-BEERFAAZFEHRBEE
M WA R R o

EERH AEEKEMBREHERN
—E-=FNMA—HHRABZFEEHH
KB BB IwEZRERIE135% - mER
ERE TR HRS T KERESR
W oBEKBEATE  BREELREH
BREZHEBEEAEE-

EERMEREMMIAREIIZE
BB HREENRREMBERE K E
BERFE-

51




Allan International Holdings Limited SEf& BB SE AR A =

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BHE_T-——_F=ZA=1+—HILFE
Significant Accounting Policies 3. TESHEHEKX »
(Continued)
Revenue recognition WA TR
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration WANKEBRBEBIRELE R
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for RS ER s REURATFERE BE
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts I REEEEDE
and sales related taxes.
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are HERDREYNER ERERRNE
=7 o

delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties include land
held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for
capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, or at deemed cost
representing fair value at the date of transfer from property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payment upon change
in usage as evidence by end of owner-occupation. Subsequent
to initial recognition,
their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss for

investment properties are measured at

the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases), other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress less their residual values, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of the reporting period, with the effect of any change in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives acquired separately
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revaluated amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible
assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

)

HE-_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

R mE S

FESBEE &)

SRMIA(£)

HMBELE (&)

BT F %
ERNEETRFAENKEEEZ #H
RARZARBESENEHZT
% BN KR RIRM B E 2 B FH
FERAZBEHEERTEMFTRK
ReFRIALZNERE R R 2 REF
B(EEMEX T WARSERN X
AR BB P XX H AR A E AR (B AT
&) e

SraxEERBRRR AP EFE TR
BE HANBBACD BREFANZE
B A RBARER N B EERER

BBEBRB LN FEAEZHEEE
(OESR=NETIRCSE S b =V DS Y B
REEEREBBRREQFESNE

o ZEERRIEBRMEAEAMTT
AFFE R M IR 2 A — G
SRER L

s MBEEHAKRAEESIRZE
e IR IR E R EIEK RN
MBEEIM TR BELARERE
BER YARFEA/EEFNMGHH
KRB RBEZEEREABAR
ZWEBE R ¢ 8

e BREEHIZERNE hEI
BEzEeHz—HHh REES
EREFEHFEHEHE ’J
(BESABR) BTABRBRIR
NEEFE




Annual Report 2011/2012 —E——FZ-_F—_FF#

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and
is included in the other gains and losses line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables and bills receivable,
other receivables, time deposits and deposits placed with
banks and financial institutions and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
or loans and receivables. Available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR & B M EEM T

]
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and bills receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period of 90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and bills receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable and a bill receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of
the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, translation costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade payables and bills payable,
other payables and secured bank loans) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE—"T——F=A=1+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire or,
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model in accordance with
HKAS 40 Investment Property, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model of the Group whose business objective is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

If an item of prepaid lease payments becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Investment properties

As described in note 15, investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuation performed by independent
professional valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers
have used a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates. In relying on the valuation report, the management
has exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. If there are changes in the assumptions used for
the valuation, the fair value of the investment properties will
change in future. As at 31 March 2012, the carrying amount of
investment properties is HK$210,989,000 (2011: nil). Details
are set out in note 15.

Depreciation

The carry value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
as at 31 March 2012 was approximately HK$406,419,000
(2011: HK$247,345,000). The Group depreciates the
property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 3 to 25 years, or over the lease
terms, after taking into account their estimated residual value,
commencing from the date the property, plant and equipment
is available for use. The estimated useful lives and dates that
the Group places the property, plant and equipment into
productive use reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of the Group’s property, plant and equipment. If
the estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment did
not reflect its actual useful life, additional depreciation may be
required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank loans, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends and new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Financial Instruments

6a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets B EE
Financial assets designated at FVTPL ~ ##@EDZEAFEAEZ
B & EE
Loans and receivables (including B E W SR IE
cash and cash equivalents) (BEASEASEE)
Available-for-sale investments At SR E
Financial liabilities b S =R

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

BURASEET 32N

31

mEMBRE SN

E_E-_F=A=1+—BILFE

EXEmER

AEEEREAN SHEEFRASEER
AR EREERE  WHEBBILEBR
BT ERRRERRALR - AEH
ZEBRREAZFUR—BERFIE -

AEEZEARBRERRIR 28
RITEF FREMREFERAAT
BREARIEHED ETPEREETK
A G R AR i A o

ARBEEFERNEARE - ERE
BHlz—®Bo EFHEBREARAR
EREAEEER - RIEESEHR
BR AEESEBIMNRE  BITH
B BITHHEFMBRREAER  FE

s
5

ERTA

6a. TRITEEHR

2012 2011
=2-=F —F—F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET TBT
8,078 4,841
967,701 884,653
8,561 11,140
564,232 252,823
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, financial assets
designated at FVTPL, trade receivables and bills
receivable, other receivables, time deposits and deposits
placed with banks and financial institutions, bank
balances and cash, trade payables and bills payable,
other payables and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which exposes the Group
to foreign currency risk. Over 95% (2011: 95%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entity making the
sale.

The Group currently does not implement hedging activity
to hedge against foreign currency exposure. However,
the management closely monitors foreign currency
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

SREMBRESHE

HE-_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

6. TR &

6b.

HMEREKRERBERBIR
AEEzFESBTABEH
HERE - FRBREZAFE
B BEE BRRESERR
JEW R - B EUER K - E 2T
REGERIBITR S BEETR
RITEBR LIRS EBNESEX
REMNRE - EMENERR LR
TEE - ZEeMIAFERE
MEE# R TXHINEZZ S/
TEMABERREEM SRR (&
W L B~ ) 3R B % At (B AR [
%) EERBRERRBESRR -
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K-BEEEEREEZERIA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

mEMBRESHE

I
HE—-Z

——HEZA=1t—HULFE

6. TR &

Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MIBEREEBEERBE (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) TSR (&)
Currency risk (Continued) EEREbE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency RIFER  AEBUIINETE 2
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at BEMEENEKAEZREER
the reporting date are as follows: ™
Liabilities Assets
&f& BE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--f —"T——F ZB-Zf _"T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FAET
United States dollar (‘USD”) e 25,476 27,059 716,910 642,683
Euro (‘EUR”) B8 715 1,164 563 7,770
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR - 856 66,275 983,308

Assets and liabilities denominated in USD, EUR and RMB
mainly represents time deposits and deposits placed
with banks and financial institutions, trade receivables/
payables, bills receivable/payable and other payables/
receivables held by the Group.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate
fluctuations of USD, EUR and RMB against the functional
currency of respective group entities, which is either
HKD or RMB. As HKD is pegged to USD, the exposure
to fluctuations in exchange rate of HKD against USD
is considered insignificant and thus the effect on group
entities using HKD as their functional currencies is not
considered in the sensitivity analysis.

AEBAET BERAREF
BrEENBBIEZRENF
FERRTREBHEBETX  E
WEZERENEDRERLE
WRE BNREREMEN,
JEU TR IE ©

AEBEXTRARETT BERA
REEASEEERBNEERE
TRARE ZEXRE R R - H
RABTEEXTTHE  SETER
R ZEXRREEBE TR
RABTREDEEE 2 &HE
B EBYWERGRELFTHE
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6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 3% (2011:
currency of respective group entities against the relevant
foreign currencies except for EUR, of which 20% (2011:
20%) increase and decrease is used due to the Europe

3%) increase and decrease in functional

Sovereign Debt Crisis which lead to significant fluctuation
on EUR. These percentages are the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for
a 3% change in foreign currency rates, for the case of
EUR, 20% (2011: 20%). A positive (negative) number
below indicates an increase (decrease) in post-tax
profit where the functional currencies of respective
group entities weaken 3% (EUR: 20%) against the
relevant currencies. For a 3% (2011: 3%),
case of EUR, 20% (2011: 20%), strengthening of the
functional currencies of respective group entities against

or in the

the relevant currencies, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.

Impact of USD
Pl

2012
—E—_—F

HK$'000

FHET

RERF /B 250

Profit or loss for the year

)

RS

=S

BE-_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

6.

2011
—T——F
HK$'000
FET

585

i =]

6b.

Impact of EUR

2012 2011
—E—_—F
HK$'000

FET

(%)

MEEAREEERERBEK (&)

hEEE (&)
BREE T ()
TRFVNAERAEEEHNEEE
ERNEEEERBHE (KREBZE
BB BRI == #E (5 75 1 8 SR
BEBREAES HETESHA
20% (ZZE——F:20%) )Jh K&
R FTREH3% (ZT——&F:
3%)2’@16@ 3% BRNIES
EEABERINERBFTAZ&K
Emwm EREHEXRAES
BEFHFH - HERESTES
FEASNE ST B 2 A S T B SNE TE
B 'j’rﬁAiﬂﬁJﬂ%E}@“tA&@&
ﬁl\ﬁ%ETZS%EME 7%20%

—7

-sﬁm jJAb(bﬁg

(%5&()%/\ BEEINEE
EMHWI\%&%L%%% (ZZF——

F:3%) ERBER20% (=F
—— 5 1 20% ) LABUEL 14 )% F| 12
mOmkd) M EEERIEE
WO K AR INE B583% (BRE A
20% ) ' e R FIEKAEE R
Rzs%-

Impact of RMB
AR HE
2012 2011
“B--F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

BETE

—T——F
HK$'000
FET
(25) 1,103

1,660 2,316

The above is mainly attributable to the exposure to time
deposit and deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions, outstanding receivables and payables at the
year end.

bt F R HRRFEERAE S
MNEMERLREFRRITREMS
BEEER BURFKIRGETLE
~ FRIE B R B2 o
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6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate time deposits and deposits placed
with banks and financial institutions.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate secured bank loans. The
Group currently does not enter into any interest rate
swaps to convert floating rate to fixed rate obligations.
However, the management closely monitors interest rate
change exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate change exposure should the need arises.

The management considers the cash flow interest rate in
relation to variable-rate bank balances is insignificant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis on such risk has been
prepared.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate secured bank loans. The analysis is prepared
assuming the secured bank loans outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 10 basis point (2011: 10 basis points) increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

)

RS

L]

=S

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

6.

ERITHE =

6b. MBEAMEERRRBE (&)

mE R (E)

Tl 2 e

$$@F*E*%Tmﬂrﬁﬁ
TREMEBEIERZQFEETR

,.L\J—Lﬁﬁi

AEBEFAMIBNEMRITAE
EHRERIAZ R RS A ER

% AEBBRERGRTHEE
HRFEEARELHNRLY B
= ,ﬂi ERTERAEEH

RMEERERSEEBLIHE
xﬂ%%@ﬂm°

EREERIFBNNERITET
HRHE SN XRBZEEANRE

BUS ARG ZRARIEHRED
#r o
HRE 5T

TXHBREDHTEREAE EH
E%%%%ﬁ@ﬂgﬂﬂﬂmﬁ
E o DT RN W E BRI R
E& 2 BEMIRT A¢%£¢*
EEERMEE NPT EER
A B I A R | B B A SR ORI10
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2011: 10
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2012 would decrease/increase by
HK$150,000 (2011: increase/decrease by HK$460). This
is attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its secured bank loans.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk and credit risk
through its investments in debt securities classified as
available-for-sale investments and designated at FVTPL.
The management considers these risks are insignificant
and therefore no sensitivity analysis on such risks has
been prepared. However, the management will closely
monitor such exposures and consider hedging such
exposures should the need arise.

e M BRE &M
BE_T-—H-A=1+—HIL#FE

6. TR &

6b.

BHREBEEEERBE (&)
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6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations at 31 March 2012 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables and the Group has
been largely dependent on a small number of customers
for a substantial portion of its business. The top three
94.5%) of the
trade receivables and bills receivable at 31 March 2012,

customers represent over 91.7% (2011:

which contributed the Group’s concentration of credit
risk by geographical location in Asia and Europe. The
failure of these customers to make required payment
could have a substantial negative impact on the Group’s
profits and liquidity. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances, liquid funds and debt
securities are limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks in Hong Kong or financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

)
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L]

=S

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

6.

ERTA

6b.

(%)
MEERREREBREREE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B #& 3R & ZMisT

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE_T——F=H=+—HLFE
6. Financial Instruments (continueq) 6. EMIT R »
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MEEMREEBEEREE (&)

(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&)

Other than concentration of credit risk on trade REERRETERKE SHER

receivables set out above, and liquid funds which are b REE T RERZ

deposited with several banks or financial institutions with A= EATRMNRITH S B

high credit ratings, the Group does not have any other BN AEETFEBEERNEKNEH

significant concentration of credit risk. FREEERR -

Liquidity risk B B % B R

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group EERRBERARE  KEE

monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash BRERR RN EERRFFR

equivalents deemed adequate by the management to ERBSEEWERE UAEAE

finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects EHEBEERTEESIHER

of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors ERERDNTE - EREEE

the utilisation of bank borrowings. IRITEEREAMMA -

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a source AEBEKBRITERBEER

of liquidity. As at 31 March 2012, the Group had BELRR-R=_TE——_F=H

available unutilised credit facilities of approximately =t+t—H AEEATRZEAH

HK$179,000,000 (2011: HK$204,560,000). BB A4 A&179,000,000%
7T (ZF —— £ : 204,560,000/
JT) °

The following table details the Group’s remaining TRFMARB ZIFTEMBE

contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial B2 TERNERE  THRE

liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the BB EcRTERERE (&

undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on REERHEERER KT AE)

the earliest date on which the Group can be required to MiEEe TREBERNE KIRE®

pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash MEARE  FIBRABZEFE - LA

flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, WMERRNEZRIERTERT

the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate ERE-

curve at the end of the reporting period.
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6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables

2012 ~E--f%

Financial liabilities at BHEE
amortised cost BHRA

Trade payables and ERESERR
bills payable e

Other payables Hi AR

Secured bank loans BERRTER
- variable rate =

Weighted
average
interest rate

miE
T =E
%

mEMBRE SN

%@:2
6. TR &

——E=A=1+—RIIEE

6b. ¥ HKEAMEEBBERKE (&)

REELEE (&)
BB &K

Carrying
Total amount at
Lessthan 3 months to 2105 Over undiscounted 31 March
3 month 1 year years 5years  cash flows 2012
“E--%
=R mE KER¢ =A=t-H
SR=MEA B-F ZRE RENE REAE ZEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tz Tz FET FET FET FET
380,703 3,717 - - 384,420 384,420
376 - - - 376 376
9,178 27,431 104,492 48,967 190,068 179,436
390,257 31,148 104,492 48,967 574,864 564,232
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mEMBRESHE

BE-_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

6. Financial Instruments (continueq) 6. TR TR »
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. BIEEMEEEEREE (£)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nEELRERE (E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) REEX (&)
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Lessthan 3 months to 2105 Over  undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 month 1 year years 5 years cash flows 2011
—E—-F
il =R FMERe =A=t-A
THRE  PR=fEA E-F WEZHE AENE mELE ZEEE
% HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FAT FAT FAT FET FHET
2011 E—F
Financial liabilities at BBaEL
amortised cost BERA
Trade payables and EREZERR
bills payable ERER - 251,598 535 - - 252,133 252,133
Other payables Hip R ER - 138 - - - 138 138
Secured bank loans BEARTER
- variable rate 38 27 168 391 - - 559 552
251,904 926 - - 252,830 252,823

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices; and

= the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

6¢C.

4% B BE SRR E R E 2
fis 5t

HER FFALMIE
TEMBARZFRTAZEE

HEED-

ATE
M AERMG AR AT AR
T :

- MBEELRMBARNTE
fER IR R MR B BOE BRI B T
BRHMBmmEENEEE

- HuBBEERMBAGER
BREREIEBEAFN
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6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6¢C.

Fair value (Continued)

The Group’s available-for-sale investments and other
financial assets are measured at fair value as detailed in
notes 19 and 20. The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of all other financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

— Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

All the financial assets at FVTPL and available-for-sale
financial assets are grouped into Level 3 at the end of the
reporting period.

mEMBRE SN

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

6.

ERITHE =
6c. AVE (&)

REBE 2 AIHHERE RH AR
BEEDARAFENE F1BH
RHE19%20 - EERABRERE
MR ERABERARZE A
HmUBEERYBEBZERR
BEEEQNFEES-

RO BT EERZ A FEE
#

THEARATEENSEREE
EZSRMIAZHIT BTBR
ZATRERES AE—BES

— @ o

- E-EAVEEHEDHE
iR I 7 5 BB T4 R 4R S
ZAEREMEZRE (KB

) -

- FEAVEEENER
AEMTRHRE BEES
RE-—EFABREZERZ
(an: B MR 2EESR
BE (W KERER) -
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HEABEMSRBECEE
FEBERAE GEBREIRA
B)ZFENE.
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e PBRE

=S

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE—"T——HF=-A=1+—HILFE
6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. TR T H (»)
6c. Fair value (Continued) 6c. NEE (&)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets

At 1 April 2010
Total gains or losses:
— in profit or loss
— in other comprehensive income
Purchases
Settlements
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2011 and 1 April 2011

Total gains or losses:
— in profit or loss
— in other comprehensive income
Purchases
Settlements
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2012

,ﬁ@é”lﬂi}zﬁﬁar

— =

—Hi 2wk
BE

:I:""‘
IZD#

ME 5 =5

—ZFPH—H

R BRI X R R FEER
B (%)
HEEEE=FELR
A

FlEstE Y

Unlisted debt
securities
FLEmEHRS
HK$ 000

FET

15,625

(1,398)
149
6,249
(4,684)
40

R-ZZB——F=A=+t—HEK

—E——%mA—H

BEN S EE
— 18z
—HEt 2 mER S
BE
=
PE X EH

R-ZE——F=HA=+—H

Of the total gains for the year included in profit or loss,

gains of HK$125,000 relates to unlisted debt securities
held at the end of the reporting period (2011: gains of
HK$197,000). Included in other comprehensive income

is an amount of HK$81,000 loss related to unlisted debt
securities held at the end of the reporting period and is
reported as changes of ‘Investment revaluation reserve’

(2011: gain of HK$106,000).

15,981

717
(597)
4,689
(4,004)
(147)

16,639

EFFERFTABR 2B K-
125,000/ 7T & F Th B R &
HABBZIELMEBESR (=
T ——:197,0008 T & F) ° 5+
AH M2 E W= 21%3%7%1 000
B BV EREREIHARSE
ZIEEMERES IEEIJ%HX
BEMEE] 228 (2% ——:
106,000/8 L& F)) °




Annual Report 2011/2012 —E——FZ-_F—_FF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Segment Information

Information reported to the Company’s executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of performance focuses on types of
goods delivered and services rendered.

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of household electrical appliance. The Group is
currently organised into four operating divisions — Europe
sales, Asia sales, America sales and other sales. The
information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of performance is based on these operating divisions.

Segment Revenues and Results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and

results for each of the reportable and operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2012

mEMBRE SN

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

7 EHER

EBENEE2BRRARRZIATES
(E2RRAL)REMNERRB R
HUEFDEREREFZD BRI -

SEEEXBAEEREHREES -
RS 3R &) 0 P AfE = Z 4 & 0 &6 - BR
MM MR EMIHE - R E R
EEBRREETBELERRANES
EZEEEDH2ERDENFZS
RS

DHEREREE
ATHREBARBIRATZRKLEED
BB RS 2 e RERAA R 2 A

BEr—FE——F=F=+—HIFE

Europe Asia America Others Consolidated
B G| Y Hitr RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note a)
(Hita)
Segment revenue NEEERE 1,281,429 658,332 356,780 120,379 2,416,920
Segment profit ks gl 108,863 55,928 30,310 10,227 205,328
Other gains and losses (except net H A7 & ER
exchange loss) CEX BB (107)
Depreciation (except moulds) e (AR (50,209)
Increase in fair value of
an investment property BREMFEATEEM 20,747
Finance costs HBER (2,469)
Unallocated income and expenses, APEHPARATFE
net (Note b) (H1:3b) (19,839)
Profit before tax BR %% A A 153,451
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

7. Segment Information continueq)

Segment Revenues and Results (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2011

Segment revenue

Segment profit

Other gains and losses (except net
exchange loss)

Depreciation (except moulds)

Increase in fair value of
an investment property

Finance costs

Unallocated income and expenses,
net (Note b)

Profit before tax

Note a:

mEMBRESHE

BE-_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

7. DEHER 2

DEERBEREE (E)
BE—F——F=HA=1—-HILFE

Segment revenue in others represent revenue from

destinations of shipment of products which individually

contributed less than 10% of total revenue of the Group.

Europe Asia America Others  Consolidated

B 2o e Hith e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

FHETL FET FET FHETT FET

(Note a)
(Hiita)
NBEER 1,225,147 606,570 306,244 82,550 2,220,511
aR=ibiab 143,609 71,101 35,897 9,676 260,283
Hit BT REE

CERBBRI) (1,643)

HE (RARI) (81,697

REMELTEEM 9,565

RH%ER (59)
RAOBOBRA KL FE

(Hiztp) (36,818)

BR 51 Al A 199,631

Hiita : FIANE AR 2 5 30 & 52K B fs

BRI ShHEEBEEETR

10% °
Kiatb - RAOMWMARBZREEMUA -

Note b: Unallocated income and expenses represented other

income, central administration costs and directors’ salaries.

RITBERALESHT -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

Segment Information (continueq)

Segment Revenues and Results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of other income, central administration cost
and directors’ salaries, other gains and losses (except net
exchange loss), depreciation (except moulds), increase in fair
value of an investment property and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the Group’s chief operating officer for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both
years.

ﬁ? 7Ji§$ﬁ¢iﬁﬁi

“FZA=t—HLHEE

DEER 2

DEERBEREE (E)
AERREENMZEFTBEREARE
Bz @ BERAR (FIRHFES) -

7 8B M FE A I R 95 B B9 E AR A -
TROTRERAMEEZFS HMAN
RERCEXABEREN) HE(RA
BRON) - REMERAFEENMRTEE
ARG ERMEBERERRALE
W REMWAEERD B RFFERE -

batprRE z EEBIAIBELA
EEN-EMFAL KRB Z D EBH
o
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Segment Information (continueq)

Allan International Holdings Limited SEf& BB SE AR A 7

7. DEHER 2

mEMBRESHE

BE_T-—H-A=1+—HIL#FE

Segment Assets and Liabilities THEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’ assets and liabilities AR AEBZAIZEREEES LD
by reportable and operating segment: MEERBEER:
Segment Assets DTHEE
2012 2011
—E—C_fF —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Europe TN 339,218 339,399
Asia D) 170,205 173,067
America E) 91,654 86,032
Others H A 3t (@ 32,164 22,984
Segment assets EPE E 633,241 621,482
Unallocated assets HBELEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 8,561 11,140
Other financial assets EMPEEE 8,078 4,841
Time deposits and deposits placed with TE A R R A7 A ERTT e & R A

banks and financial institutions BERX 169,683 212,094
Bank balances and cash BROEFERRS 188,700 104,340
Investment properties S E Y 210,989 -
Plant, equipment and machinery 5 - & R as (FEABRIN)

(except moulds) 398,557 240,092
Club debentures BHES 13,866 13,866
Other receivables E {th & Uk BR 3R 107,334 58,407
Tax recoverable fERFHIA 2,210 1,577
Other unallocated assets (Note) HMARDEE (H7at) 39,013 112,351

Consolidated assets 1,780,232 1,380,190
Note: ~ Other unallocated assets comprised of prepaid lease Mit: EMAPEEEREENEER

payments, deposits and paid for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment and deposits paid or acquisition of an

investment property.

B EREENBEDE  BE MR
B hENBEREME & -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE— —E=ZA=T—HIFE
7. Segment Information (continueq) 7. 2HER @
Segment Assets and Liabilities (Continued) THEEREE (£)
Segment Liabilities TEEE
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Europe B 19,194 13,991
Asia M 8,786 6,267
America EM 5,306 3,578
Others ot 3 [= 1,808 928
Segment liabilities (Note) DEEE (KE) 35,094 24,764
Unallocated liabilities Ao BE
Trade payables and bills payable BB S RIAREMNEE 384,420 252,133
Other payables and accruals H b A~ BR K N B AR A 182,108 196,067
Secured bank loans BEFRITER 179,436 552
Tax payable FES IR 41,251 45,084
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIE 16,185 9,649
Consolidated liabilities mReEafE 838,494 528,249
Note: Segment liabilities represented mould deposits received by each Kt BEREAFSZ2IRE— 22D

segment.

HMAaE-
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Segment Information (continueq)

mEMBRESHE

BE_T-—H-A=1+—HIL#FE

7. DEHER 2

Other segment information HeosER
Year ended 31 March 2012 BE_E—_—F=A=1+—HILFE
Total
Europe Asia America Others segment  Unallocated Consolidated
BOM Y| EM Hith 8 P HER KB Ga
HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000
Tz Tz FE7 FiE7 FET FE7 Tz
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or LEEE BN EN D EBE M E
segment assets: B D EEE-
Addition to non-current assets  EREIEELM 2,479 1,115 647 238 4,479 202,982 207,461
Depreciation hE 2,106 977 608 196 3,887 50,209 54,096
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision TR MHAEELEERR AL
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BREERETEND 5T KEEI D
loss or segment assets: HEE -
Interest income on bank deposits #1777 22 Fl B M A - - - - - 845 845
Interest income on MEHEREZFIBBA
available-for-sale investments - - - - - 430 430
Rental income AL WA - - - - - 3 37N
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE— —E=ZA=T—HIFE
7. Segment Information (continueq) 7. DEEFR »
Other segment information (Continued) HeoiER (&)
Year ended 31 March 2011 BE—f——F=ZH=1—-HILFE
Total
Europe Asia America Others segment  Unallocated  Consolidated
B LDl M HitiE HEEE RHE A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or LHBEERENFTEN D 5= FskEE
segment assets: RO EEE °
Addition to non-current assets  FEiRE & EE N 2,864 1,385 831 171 5,251 75,172 80,423
Depreciation & 1,526 663 370 105 2,664 31,697 34,361
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision B RRBAEELE RS
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BETNEERFEND 5z _JZEEHE &
loss or segment assets: HEE-
Interest income on bank deposits  $R1T77 38 2 K| 8 A - - = = = 702 702
Interest income on NHEHEREZFIBRA
avallable-for-sale investments - - - - - 508 508
Information about major customers FEEZFMNER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years AEEBBABEHEREI0%HNA LR
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as FERHAMEEEOT
follows:
2012 2011
—E-—=F —E——fF
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Customer A (Europe, Asia, America and Others) & FA (BUM ~ g2 M ~ =M &

E bR ) 1,006,530 990,816
Customer B (Europe, Asia, America and Others) & FEB (BUM - 250 ~ 20 &
Hthth[& ) 711,565 582,441

Customer C (Europe, Asia, America and Others) & FC (BN~ 25l =M &
H b i [ ) 269,031 265,167
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

8. Other Income

Rental income

Interest on bank deposits

Building management fee income

Scrap sales

Interest on available-for-sale investments
Others

9. Directors’ and Employees’

Emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments

8. Htlg A

mEMBRESHE

BE-_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight

(2011: eight) directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
—E—C_fF —F——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
e WA 3,771 =
;RITH B 845 702
BFEEBWRA 699 =
545 EE 544 2,911
AEEEREZHE 430 508
Hi 428 1,076
6,717 5,197
9. EENEEMS
(@ E=M=

BN EMN TR (ZE——F:

8R)EETZEAZHEMT :

BE—E-——F=F=+—HI
FE

Ms. Cheung ~ Ms. Cheung Mr. Lai Professor
Mr. Cheung  Mr. Cheung Lai Chun, LaiSee, M. Cheung Ah Ming, Lo Chung Dr. Chan Total
Lun Shu Wan Maggie Sophie Pui Leon Mau  How Chun 2012
EREE REBEE REYR: RENaE FEEE  REPEE  ERAAR  REEEL &8
HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000
FET AT FET A7 FET A7 AT A7 AT
Fees ik - - - - - 100 - - 100
Other emoluments %
Salaries and 58k
other benefits HhgH 2,959 2,111 1,435 1,584 1,315 - - - 10,004
Bonus nots) T (M) 1,140 7,311 671 749 584 - - - 10,455
Contributions to RIBHG 2R
retirement benefits
schemes - 263 143 162 130 - - - 698
Total emoluments Weks 4,099 10,285 2,249 2,495 2,029 100 - - 21,257
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-T—F=-A=1+—HLFE
9. Directors’ and Employees’ 9. EEREEME »)
Emoluments (continuea)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ E=BM<E (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 BE—_F——F=F=1+—HI
FE
Ms. Cheung  Ms. Cheung Mr. Lai Professor
Mr. Cheung ~ Mr. Cheung Lai Chun, LaiSee,  Mr Cheung Ah Ming, Lo Chung Dr. Chan Total
Lun Shu Wan Maggie Sophie Pui Leon Mau How Chun 2011
RREE  REBEE REYRT  RENAT REEE  BEREE  BRERAE  REEEL &5

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
AT FET TET TET TET TET AT AT AT

Fees ok - - - - - 100 - - 100
Other emoluments ~ Eftr &
Salaries and other &R
benefits Ehu g 2,19 2,507 1,356 1,562 1,249 - - - 9,478
Bonus (note) T (M) 3,899 14,955 2,377 2,601 1918 - - - 25,750
Contributions to RINBRG 2R
retirement benefits

schemes - 251 136 195 124 - - - 666
Total emoluments fees 6,698 17,713 3,869 4,318 3,291 100 - - 35,989
Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined Kiat - BERIBE S THRBERIA

with reference to the performance of the individual and TREERBRIRE -

the Group.
Professor Lo Chung Mau waived his fees of HK$100,000 EEXBEREBEZ_ZT—Z=F
(2011: HK$100,000) for the year ended 31 March 2012. A=+t HLEHEEWHES
Dr. Chan How Chun waived her fees of HK$100,000 100,000 L (=& — — & :
(2011: HK$100,000) for the year ended 31 March 2012. 100,000/ 7T) ° R Z H1E TR &L
No other director waived any emoluments for both years. E_T——_F=A=1+—HIEK

FEHWE100,00087T (=T ——
& :100,000/8 ) 8 B8 HMb=E

EREEMFENRE -
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEM=
The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2012 and rEBR_T——_FR_F——
2011 were all directors of the Company and details of FARNEEFSNENA LTS
their emoluments are included in (a) above. BARNRIZEE HileERE

PR EX () B -
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10. Other Gains and Losses

Net foreign exchange loss

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Write-off of property, plant and equipment

Net gain (loss) on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Net gain (loss) on financial assets
designated at FVTPL

11.Income Tax Expense

Current tax:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Overprovision in prior years — Hong Kong

Deferred tax (note 26):
Current year

mEMBRESHE

BE-_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

10. Ht BRI R &8
2012 2011
—E—C_fF —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
IME B 185 5 (7,863) (305)
LEWE WEMKEZRBF
1,773 259
Y1 - BB &R R (2,597) (504)
HERMHELERERT (EE)
e E=C 489 (115)
BREREATFEFEZTS
BERMN (BE)FE 228 (1,283)
(7,970) (1,948)
1. IR X
2012 2011
—E—_F —_E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FEIT
(Restated)
(&E71))
REERIE
BB 17,357 18,383
FECERER 7,880 18,356
25,237 36,739
BEFERERE-—FE (113) (34)
EIEFLTE (H1:226)
KEE 1,190 1,695
26,314 38,400
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

11.Income Tax Expense (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

i)

K

R mE S

BE-_ T —F=-A=1t—HILFE

1. FIBHHEX @

WEFE 2 BAFEH TG T ER
BEFIE16.5% 2 Fi KT 5 -

RBFBEEEMEFXR ([FHBE]) R
BEHBOAAIR B AR OEERE
P18 M /325% °

AERZBHBERA HEEA2HE K
sR A Z BRBLATE AT

2012 2011
%% —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before tax B ¢ B g A 153,451 199,631
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits BB EB IR E16.5%
Tax rate of 16.5% 25,320 32,939
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 1~ ] F1 8, 2 5 37 3 F& S5 5% F)
for tax purpose e 1,067 1,213
Tax effect of income that is not taxable FE IR 2 WO\ 3 e 20 750 s )
for tax purpose & (5,455) (2,887)
Effect of different tax rates in the PRC AEERNPRETEHE 2 FE 1,905 6,892
Overprovision in respect of prior years BEFEREREG (113) (34)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTRIE R Z 2 2,520 40
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings RO EAF <z B 920 1,588
Others H A 150 (1,351)
Tax charge for the year REERIE L M 26,314 38,400
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

12. Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after

charging:

Staff salaries and allowances

Contributions to retirement benefits schemes,
net of forfeited amount of HK$66,960

(2011: HK$18,000)

Total staff costs, including directors’

emoluments

2? MRS

:I:—?

12, ZFEimH

Depreciation for property, plant and equipment #J 2 Jﬁi%&?“ﬁ%%

Release of prepaid lease payments

Auditor’s remuneration

Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable

within five years

Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable

after five years

.Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution

during the year

2012 Interim dividend of HK2.5 cents
(2011: 2011 interim dividend of HK5

cents) per ordinary share

2011 final dividend of HK15 cents
(2011: 2010 final dividend of HK18 cents)

per ordinary share

=S

“FZA=t—HLHEE

2012 2011
—E—_F —_E——4%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
REE @ A B R
I E=SEE
8 T 3B & 8h 274,575 259,020
RIREFETEMER MR E BRI
2 {366,960/ T
(Z=——%:18,000/ 7T ) 12,352 11,268
RMETKAN (BEESHE)
286,927 270,288
54,096 34,361
G S NN =0 809 754
% 2 6l B & 2,333 2,277
HARAFERNEHEEARIT
&2 B 1,708 59
A ﬁAﬂi{éi%‘(fé EHERTT
f& K7 B 761 =
13. R &2
2012 2011
—E—-_fF —F——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
FAEERREZKRE
—E-—FHRHREEFLRER
2.5
(ZE——F: T ——FH
HARR 2578 1) 8,386 16,772
B FREBREEFEBER
157811l
—E-—F: 2T -FFX
HARR B 187 l) 50,315 60,378
58,701 77,150
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13. Dividends (continueaq)

A final dividend of HK12.5 cents (2011: HK15 cents) per share
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The final dividend will be paid on 28 September
2012 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 7 September 2012.

.Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
per share (Profit for the year attributable to

owners of the Company) mEAZRA)
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of it & I Z 48 2 % i
basic earnings per share f&1n £ B

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both
years as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue.

—EER

SRE MR ESHE

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

13. R E (&)

ESZRRBERAREFR12.5%5
(ZZF——F 158 1) -t EF IR 2
2 ARHARR B ERE AR R AR R B
BOOZBRERERS L E TR
T —FAAZFTNBENFRZ
—Z—F AR BIARAF KRR LM
pd 3

. BRAEF

SRR FEAANEARH
ZEETRBAT AR

REREAANTE Z&F
(REERDEBEARE

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
127,137 161,231

Number of shares

KRB E
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
‘000 ‘000
7 F
=2 ERKR

335,433 335,433

EMFERARITECHEZ SR
WU E A5 SR EER A -
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15. Investment Properties

FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1 April 2010 RZ-E
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss NEE
Disposal e

At 31 March 2011 and 1 April 2011

Additions N
Transfer i

Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss

At 31 March 2012 RIE

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group acquired
an investment property in Hong Kong from independent
third parties for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$160,353,000 including transaction costs. The transaction
was completed on 8 April 2011.

In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2012, an import
processing factory of the Group which situated on a piece
of land in the PRC ceased operation and management
decided to hold the land and factory for earning rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Immediately prior to the transfer,
the directors assessed the recoverable value of the factory
building and concluded that the factory building was with
minimal recoverable value and therefore, the carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,991,000 has been written off and
recognised as other gains and losses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. As a result, the factory
building and the related prepaid lease payments in respect of
the land with carrying amounts of approximately HK$nil and
HK$12,251,000 respectively, were transferred to investment
properties at fair value of approximately HK$29,889,000 on 1
December 2011 due to the change of usage as evidenced by
end of owner-occupation. The difference between the carrying
amount and fair value which amounted to approximately
HK$17,638,000 is recognised in the consolidated other

comprehensive income as property revaluation reserve.

A

i[9

=
=

)

K

:I:—?

D EE NN IR S A RER

R mE S

“FZA=t—HLHEE

15. IREY %=

HK$ 000

FET

FpH—H 11,300

Rigss AR 9,565

(20,865)

R-E——F=A=+—HBHKMA—H =
160,353

29,889

20,747

——#=A=+—H 210,989

REBE-_T——F=-A=+—HLFE"
EERBUFE=FREBURSKRERK
BE T —IE#49160,353,000/ 7T (BIER 5

RAR)WIRENE ZRFIERZT——
FHANBEMK-

N REBEZE——-F=A=+—H
HFEER REBMAPE—IELH
RAZ—HMEBNIBESRILEE
& 2 fE R TE 15 A 5% T 3 KRR 5 DA Bk
RSk, HEAREE - BEZER
A EFZCTEREEF 2 KREE
B MimAREET ATl EEER
& - & itk - BRI B 491,991,000/8 7T E
HWEHERGEZEKERERRHM
Wes R E1E - At BREED AT
JL 12,251,000 T 2 Z B E 1 F &
BlAZ T AEAEMNEERED R
R-ZZE——F+=_A—BZRFEY
29,889,000 THEEEZIREYHE - RA
AEFERIIEAMKERS -%E®E
B8N F{E %= ¥ 4917,638,000/% T 2
REMEGEEZEARSEREMESH
o
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-Z——F#=-A=+—HItFE

15. Investment Properties (continued) 15. REWZE »)
The fair value of the investment properties as at the date REBEBER-TE——F=H=14—
of transfer and at 31 March 2012 have been arrived at on B AEBKREMENAFEHRE LS
the basis of a valuation carried out on these dates by RHL XA AR GHAERMXAITHERRER
Appraisal Ltd., independent qualified professional valuers not NEBEITEM - HEDRBEMISCIRT
connected with the Group. The valuation was arrived at by BRERE R E AR ETT - RIFL S
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar HOBEURNE S HERNIEE 2K
properties in the same locations and conditions. All of the SEMEYEERNIRABAFEEREN
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn FrE WA BEAERARIIEREYE-

rentals or for capital appreciation purpose are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above FHBRAEECIREMZE IR :
are situated on:

2012 2011
—E-—fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Property in Hong Kong under long lease BEYEI AR E
GER DTSSR o] 181,100 -
Land outside Hong Kong under long lease BB AIN I o DA £ HA
MR EE 29,889 —
210,989 -
The Group has pledged the investment property located REBLESZIBEDR  BEBURES
in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately BRI {E47181,100,000/8 T 1% & ¥ 2
HK$181,100,000 to secure the mortgage loan granted to the AR o
Group.
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e PBRE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

HEZET

=S

——E=A=1+—RIIEE

16. 15 - BERRHE

Leasehold
land under Furniture,
finance Factory  Plantand fixturesand Moulds and Motor  Construction
lease Buildings buildings  machinery  equipment tools vehicles in progress Total
MEREH E%fs HKHE 2E
BANLH BF  IBNE Rz k#fE EBAERIE AE  EBIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHL TiEn THT T THT TiEn FHT T
(Note a) (Note g) (Note ) (Restated)
(Hiita) (Hiita) (Hiztn) (Zfi)
COoST KfE
At 1 April 2010 WZZE-ZFMA—H 9,615 4,374 138,863 239,354 71,619 16,182 11,300 906 492,213
Exchange adjustments HNEFE - - 5,969 2,508 1,783 29 138 475 10,902
Additions NE - - - 22,336 15,808 5,338 5,215 31,726 80,423
Transfer L - - 9,393 - - - - (9,393 -
Disposals/write-off HE /M - - - (26,004) (1,795) (107) (6,252) - (33,158)
At 31 March 2011 and RZZ——5=4

1 April 2011 =+-AREA-A 9,615 4,374 154,225 238,194 87,415 21,442 11,401 23,714 550,380
Exchange adjustments MEHE - - 3,542 6,090 2,087 9 140 898 12,766
Additions AE = = 3,428 121,242 42,331 4975 447 35,043 207,461
Transfer @i - = 34,158 16,882 7,371 - - (658,411) -
Disposals/write-off HE /K - - (6,787) (9,300) (1,362) (75) - = (17,524)
At 31 March 2012 RZZ—-F

=A=+t-H 9,615 4,374 188,561 373,108 137,842 26,351 11,988 1,244 753,083
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 April 2010 RZZ-ZEMA—-H 221 4,374 35,025 179,578 59,566 11,491 6,522 - 296,777
Exchange adjustments INEFRE - - 724 488 1,114 27 94 - 2447
Provided for the year REERE 11 - 5,770 17,224 6,752 2,679 1,925 - 34,361
Eliminated on disposals/write-off Hi & /i B 1 - - - (25,081) (1,769) (107) (3,599) = (30,550)
At 31 March 2011 and RZE-——%=]

1 April 2011 =+-HARMA—-A 232 4,374 41,519 172,209 65,663 14,090 4,948 - 308,035
Exchange adjustments SNERR - - 637 2,521 1,001 3 87 - 4,339
Provided for the year RERERME 11 - 6,577 28,806 12,840 3,944 1,918 = 54,096
Eliminated on disposals/write-off & /i B 4% 84 = - (4,79) (8,634) (1,314) (62) - - (14,806)
At 31 March 2012 WZE--F

=f=t-H 243 4,374 43,937 194,902 78,280 17,975 6,953 - 346,664
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2012 RZE--F

=f=t-H 9,372 - 144,624 178,206 59,562 8,376 5,085 1,244 406,419
At 31 March 2011 RZE——&

=A=1-8 9,383 - 112,706 65,985 21,752 7,352 6,453 23,714 247,345
Note: it -
(@  The buildings situated in the leasehold land under finance lease (@ MAREHREMBENIHARED

=

had been fully depreciated but still in use by the Group. The
leasehold land under finance lease is situated in Hong Kong
under long lease.

(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group is still in the
process of obtaining the ownership certificate of the factory
buildings which the carrying value was HK$95,045,000 (2011:
HK$64,871,000).

TENE BNRAKEER -BE
HEMFAN ML NER  KEIHE
.

REE-ZT——F=A=+—HLtF
E ' £ B IE £ AR H{E95,045,00078
JC (ZF——%F : 64,871,000 7T ) Z
ME#EITERNEANEERERES -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continueqd)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land under finance lease

Buildings and factory buildings
Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Moulds and tools

Motor vehicles

The carrying value of buildings and factory buildings

COMprises:

Buildings situated in Hong Kong
under long lease

Factory buildings situated outside
Hong Kong under:
Long lease
Medium-term lease

Annual Report 2011/2012 — & ——FZ=F

BHE_T——

e PBHRE

—EER

=S

FZA=+—HIFE

16. ¥ -BERRE @

ERRBEYE BEMRE (ERETRE
BRON) 2 T E DR AT 5| F R B AR

=
MEHESMFEN LI Over the lease terms
AEHR
BERIRYE 4%
iR 5= 5% B A 28 15%
RE -EERXE 20 - 33'/2%
HEKRTA 20 — 331/2%
RE 20%
BFERIBYEZRBRERRE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
UREBEBZREHESET
R BB AINZ THD
K EFF 49 - 2,172
AR HAFA 49 144,624 110,534
144,624 112,706
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mEMBRESHE

]
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-Z——F#=-A=+—HItFE
17.Prepaid Lease Payments 17. EHHENKIE
2012 2011
2% —F——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
The Group’s prepaid lease SEBEFHEERIBRE:

payments comprise:

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: MR BBAINEE T
Medium-term lease hEIAR A
Long lease REHED
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EERA & 2 DT
Current assets TENE E
Non-current assets FmBEE

On 1 December 2011, a prepaid lease payment of
approximately HK$12,251,000 was transferred to investment
properties as its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, the difference of approximately
HK$17,638,000 between the carrying amount of
HK$12,251,000 and the fair value of approximately
HK$29,889,000 of that prepaid lease payment at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as
property revaluation reserve.

28,878 28,813
- 4,260
28,878 33,073
693 754
28,185 32,319
28,878 33,073

24

AZE-——&E+-_A—B ENHA
ERIEH12,251,0008 TE EHEE
BEYE AEHFERIEABmMNKE
A# RERA ZBEMNEEREDN
BREE12,251,0008 T 2 A FELH
29,889,000/ 70,2 Z= 58 (#917,638,000
B EREME2EREEREMESE
i o
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18.

Club Debentures

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 March 2011, 1 April 2011 and
31 March 2012

ARTE E

— =

The club debentures with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired. The directors are of the opinion that no
impairment loss was identified with reference to market value.

.Available-For-Sale Investments

Unlisted debt securities JE LB S
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EEmA® 2 DT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets MENEE

The investments in unlisted debt securities are stated at fair
value, which have been determined by reference to prices
provided by the counterparty financial institution. As of 31
March 2012, the debt securities carry interest either at fixed
rate or variable rates, which is reference to London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a fixed rate. The effective interest
rate is 3.8% (2011:
of these debt securities ranges from three year to eight years
(2011: from three to nine years).

4.2%) per annum. The original maturity

i)

K

:I:—?

19.

L]

RmESHE

“FZA=t—HLHEE

18. EfrfE%

R-ZE——F=A=+—8"
—F-—FmMA-AK

HK$'000
FET
—F=A=+—H 13,866

BEHRNEMEFREFRERTR
Eﬁﬁiﬁfﬁﬁf’ﬁf)ﬁkﬁiﬁﬂﬁ -BERESLE

mISEE RRRBEREEE-
JREERE
2012 2011
—E2--F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
8,561 11,140
8,561 8,776
- 2,364
8,561 11,140

FELEMEBIFEAFEAR  miEY
CRBBRHERIERZE - RZT—=
F=A=1+—0 EBIHFZFEUR
EMESZBF R E - Afm IR 1T
EEZi¥= (mBORJ)butE%E?‘rIJ“?f’E
2Z - BRFER/ETF3.8%
F:4.2%) - WERBBAF 2 REEA
B=FENFIAEZF(ZE—F A=
EBNE) -

— =
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20. Other Financial Assets

e PBHRE

K

:I:—?

=S

“FZA=t—HLHEE

Ht B EE

Current Non-current
8 FRE

2012 2011 2012 2011

“E--f —T——% CZB--f <—T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET
Other financial assets Hthm B E&EE

Financial assets designated FRBEREATEFE

at fair value through ZHBEE

profit or loss (FVTPL) 1,513 = 6,565 4,841

These represent unlisted debt investments with carrying
amounts of HK$1,513,000 (2011: HK$1,521,000) redeemable
upon maturity in July 2012 (2011: July 2012),
remaining investments with carrying amounts of HK$6,565,000
(2011: HK$3,320,000) have no specific maturity date and
being redeemable at the director’s discretion. The return of

while the

investment of these debt investments are linked to specific
commodity indexs such as biofuels and agriculture products.
As at 31 March 2012, the directors intended to hold these
investments either to their maturities or at least in the coming
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
therefore, except for the investment which will be mature in
July 2012, the remaining are classified as non-current assets.

The above financial instruments are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period.

AR - E——F+tA(=ZF——
FZE—ZFLA)IHEREDZ
AR {E1,513,0008 L (=& ——F:
1,521,000/87T) 2 3E EMEBKIRE - H
#8 B IEE R B H 2 BRE (86,565,000
B (ZF——4 : 3,320,000 7T ) %
EREBATED ZEEBRERRK
B TFRMIERNEMRE 2 ¥R
%o%:%-:EZH:+—E-§$
ﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁhézﬁ | 55 A 3K R 4
BEDRF+TZMEA - ﬁﬁz;%iﬁxé“

%ER?Em@JéE
tiiemTAREEEBARFER
%O
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21.

22.

mEMBRESHE

BE_T——E=A=1+—HIIEE

Inventories 21. 78
2012 2011
2% —F——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Raw materials R #k 28,812 31,812
Work in progress 2 m 16,227 12,306
Finished goods BIFK om 48,742 43,296
93,781 87,414
Trade Receivables and Bills 22. BENE ZIRF R EWELE
Receivable/Other Receivables JEL b e UL TR IR
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Trade receivables U E 5 BR K 509,016 515,571
Bills receivable JE U 2 45 337 1,101
509,353 516,672
Other receivables (Note) H th JEWGRIB (A7 L) 107,334 58,407
616,687 575,079

Note: As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s other receivables
mainly include value added tax receivable of approximately
HK$97,608,000 (2011: HK$46,954,000), which will be
repayable within one year.

Hi: R=ZE——F=A=+—H K
SENEMERIEREZBELY
97,608,000 L (=& — — &F:
46,954,000/ 7T ) 2 FEMUE BT K
15 A — F U E] o
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22. Trade Receivables and Bills

Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

The Group maintains defined credit period of up to 90 days.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables and bills
receivable presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period:

0 - 90 days 0-90H
91 — 120 days 91 - 120H
Over 120 days BiE120H

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. In addition, the Group reviews the repayment
history of receivables by each customer with reference to
the payment terms stated in contracts. In determining the
recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any
change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the
date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. In the
opinion of directors, the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired were of good credit quality based on good
repayment history at the end of the reporting period and no
impairment is necessary for these balances.

i)

K

:I:—?

22. EWE 5 IRE

PR mE S

“FZA=t—HLHEE

IR EWEE
/AM@WmEﬁ)

AEBRIAEEEHEIOR - ATR
FEUE 5B A M B RIEN RS B IA
LRARRER 2RO

2012 2011
=2—=F —F——F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
485,266 515,996
24,032 676

55 -

509,353 516,672

REMEAFHEFER  AEECHEE
EEFPZEEERRREPRAERE
[REE- UL REBBER KM 2
RGBT EEPEEREFAZL
i EEERBRWE S BRIV EREH
ERBEAZEEERERANE
PARE E FE U E 2 Bk R 2 AT MR B 14 » A R
TH O EERR ERNNRELRI
BHEEEZEREEERRIFAE
BERARENE A TFERZLEHRE
LAE °
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22. Trade Receivables and Bills

Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$35,740,000 (2011:
HK$87,776,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired
presented based on the due date:

0 - 90 days 0-90H

The Group would fully provide for all receivables which are
over 180 days because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond 180 days are generally
not recoverable.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade and other
receivables and bills receivable. The Group has not provided
for impairment loss as the directors assessed that these
balances will be recovered base on their settlement records.

B

mEMBRESHE

E_E-_F=A=1+—BILFE

22 ENEZRANRERRE

JH e U SR IE ()

AEERKBESRRBIERAES
#35,740,0008 L (ZF — —F:
87,776,000 7T ) 2 FEWE 5 IR K » %
RN RE B BB B {8 I £ 1 R
BEERE BEEEZWREAN
B ERZEZNELUMNE - AE
Bl ERZERBEREEMERR-

B R MBI IR (E < B E 5508 iR
R HE ZRREA T

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
35,740 87,776

BB E &S B AR B 180K 2 B K
EREAOWE AR RAmMERIAD
HBiB180K % 2 2 EPEW R IAE L 2 &
Bt

AEBEI T E 5 K H b BUFIA K
EURRERETMERR EFENK
RELER R 2 TSR A W E - AR
I 8 B 5% F IR ME R E A R
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-_T——F#=A=+—HILtFE
23.Time Deposits and Deposits 23. EHIFERANERBIRE
Placed with Banks and Financial B o ERRITHEE
Institutions/Bank Balances and g
Cash
(@) Time deposits and deposits placed with banks and (a) EHEXNERBITRESEBEE
financial institutions ZER
2012 2011
—E—_—F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Time deposits placed with banks FERIE1TZ EHFER 164,831 182,263
Deposits placed with FREBEE TR
financial institutions 4,852 29,831
169,683 212,094

Time deposits and deposits placed with banks and
financial institutions carry fixed interest rates with
effective interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.1%
(2011: 0.01% to 2.6%) per annum.

(b) Bank balances and cash
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range

from approximately nil to 0.5% (2011: nil to 0.4%) per
annum.

EHFRMERIEIT R B
B2ERATBERERMEZE
TE B F B H001%E3.1%
(ZE——F:0.01%%2.6%) °

(b) RTEFENRE

RITBEFERMSNEXRFTER

FHEE05% (=

Z0.4%) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE_T——F=A=+—RHILFE
24.Trade Payables and Bills Payable 24 EREZRIARENRERE

25.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables and bills
payable presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

RBERERE  RIBEZAHZTNZ
ENEZERANENRRZRE DN

reporting period: R
2012 2011
=2-=F —F—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 - 90 days 0-90H 352,202 252,133
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H 28,461 -
Over 120 days HBiE120H 3,757 -
384,420 252,133
P Al =
Secured Bank Loans 25. IR/ ITE R
2012 2011
—EB-=fF —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Secured bank loans, EHRITE K ER T 52
with carrying amount repayable: EEZRMEE:
Within one year —F A 33,779 552
More than one year, but not exceeding ZR—F BT BEAMRSE
two years 54,128 -
More than two years, but not exceeding ZRME BTN HBRARSE
five years 44,996 -
More than five years FFEUE 46,533 =
179,436 552
Less: Amount due within one year shown BHERAEBSEEY
under current liabilities —FRNERDHE (33,779) (552)
Amount due after one year —FREREE 145,657 =

The bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest at 1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) plus a range of 0.8% to 2.75% (2011: 1-month
HIBOR + 2.5%) per annum, which ranging from 1.1% to
3.05% (2011: 2.71%) per annum, thus exposing the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk.

RTERAEZHANERZEE FEX
AEBIRITRFEN B IN0.8%E2.75%
(—@R) (ZE——F:FBRTA

EIREMN2.5% (— @A) )

CHEE M

11%E3.05% (FF) (ZF——F:
271% (8F) ) HMSEERRHRS

/}lb@JﬂTZH fa o

107




108 Allan International Holdings Limited T2 fEIBR & B AR 2 &

mEMBRESHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

]
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE—_ZT——F=A=1+—HILLFE
26. Deferred Tax Liabilities 26. EEHIEEE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised THAAREERAMFAD THEERZE
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: ZREEHREEBEUARER &
Withholding
tax on
distributable
Fair value  Accelerated profit of
changes tax  subsidiaries
of property  depreciation in PRC Total
R A R
mE 2 EER Z
DAFESEH MEHRERN Stk okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7)) (7))
At 1 April 2010 R-E—ZFMNA—H = 5,890 2,064 7,954
Charge to profit or loss MEEEER - 107 1,588 1,695
At 31 March 2011 and RZE——F
1 April 2011 ZA=+—Hk
“Z——FNA—H — 5,997 3,652 9,649
Charge to profit or loss MREER = 270 920 1,190
Charge to other comprehensive HREMEEE
income 5,346 - = 5,346
At 31 March 2012 R-TB——F
=B=+—H 5,346 6,267 4,572 16,185
The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets arising from REBEWERERELERBEEE  RE
tax losses of HK$19,192,000 (2011: HK$3,915,000) due RIEETERT REI£19,192,0008 7T (=
to the unpredictability of future project streams. Included T ——4 3,915,000/ 70 ) Z AR HKIHEB
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately MIEFMELENTRIBEE 2EERE
HK$14,684,000 (2011: nil) that will expire in 2017. Other R IEEIENA14,684,00087C (=&
losses may be carried forward indefinitely. ——F E\)BE BER_ZE—tF5

H-HiEEn R ARE-
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27.Share Capital

31

mEMBRESHE

E_E-_F=A=1+—BILFE

27. IR

2012 & 2011 2012 & 2011
—BE-—FR ZEB-C=FR
—E——F —E——F
Number of
shares HK$'000
RGE=E FAETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each f& AREEO0. 10755 T 2 & @A
Authorised: JETE AN
At beginning and end of the year REV R F 600,000,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid BEITRARKA
At beginning and end of the year R 1)) 2 5F 4 s 335,432,520 33,543

28.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 20 August, 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees, the directors and employees of the Company
may, at the discretion of the Company’s directors, be granted
options (the “Options”) to subscribe for shares in the Company
(the “Shares”) at a price determined by its directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of () the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of the offer of grant, which must be a trading day;
(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
and the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time.

28. IR T2

BEARRRZZEZ-_FNAZ=TH
Rz BB ERT Sl ([FERERTEl]) -
RAAREZEZENBERLERE TR
REAIZEEREEURBARAZHK
N REERESSET  HTIEER
TH=&FFZzE&EE: (BRORBLOE
PEREZA (BAARSH) ZWME
(LABSE 22 BT B R R T fUR A 2E) ¢ (i)i%
MRENBRLBEREZEANAEARS
B2z U iE (B BSRERAE
EHBE) R EE -

R A AR BRI SR LE - (TERE
BREAEBRTZRNBHTSES
ARRBMNMERARE BT Z10%
R BEITRD RET E B A TR E
ARRBPMEF IR E BITIRANZ1% -
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28.

29.

Share Option Scheme (continueq)

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from
the date of its adoption. Options granted must be taken up
not later than 28 days after the date of grant. A consideration
of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an
option. An option is exercisable on the date when the offer for
the grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the
Scheme.

Related Party Disclosures

Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to the related
parties are as follows:

Ultimate holding company BAEZERARE
Allan Investment Company Limited TmIEERRA A
Fellow subsidiaries [ 2 Fff /& A 7]
Income Village Limited REAR A A

Fair Pacific Limited EIEG R A A
Director of the Company REES

Mr. Cheung Pui SR IE ST A

mEMBRESHE

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

28. IR ERTEl (2)

29.

BEREAENERERBSEEHE
PerEE R E BRRFH0F - BER T 2B
BLANK T1R28RNES - AR1E
TUERR LB 2 B - X HEA
FIBERG 1T - s BRI Al BB H IR h BB X
BEBHE BREF  HEETFABR T IE
BN B AE B HERT 105 -

BB A B BUA R B TR
P4 o

HEEREALIRZZEE

AEEENAENEEAXTTIEAE
BEAL:

2012 2011
=2-=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAET
900 900

204 204

984 984

653 624
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29. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases with related parties which
included in note 30 and fall due as follows:

31

mEMBRESHE

E_E-_F=A=1+—BILFE

20. EEEREA TR G ZIHE

(%)

REER AEBEEBMEALTZ A
BEn2ERE (B RFEAEMEI30)M
BXMRFRIEERMNBEEAEDT:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRFR
(BERMEREERN)

Certain directors of the Company have significant influence
in Allan Investment Company Limited, Income Village Limited
and Fair Pacific Limited. Mr. Cheung Pui is a director of the
Company.

The remuneration of key management personnel, which
represent the directors of the Company during the year was as
follows:

CHIB T8 A
BAKEF

Short-term employee benefits
Post employment benefits

The remuneration of directors is recommended by the Board
and the Chairman having regard to the performance of
individuals, market trends and conditions with a view to retain
and motivate executives to purpose the Group’s operation.

2012 2011
—E-——F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
2,752 2,249
1,934 2,784
4,686 5,033

ARARNMNEFHERKEBRA
A HEERARMEESRAREE
AXEN RIEBEER/RARFZES -

REATREEABZME  BIREKRA

NAIZERWT:

2012 2011

—2-=F —F——%
HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

20,559 35,323

698 666

21,257 35,989

EEZMEeNRERNETIHNRE M5
BERER BEFERRHALFEFLRE

i HF
BRERN

BLHEITHABES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

30. Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

mEMBRESHE

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

Minimum lease payments paid during the year NFEt < EHEME 2

under operating leases in respect of
rented premises

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

RIEBA K

30. £ EME
AEBEREBEA
2012 2011
2% —F——%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
3,141 2,723

REER AEBBAYEZ T HE
LEREmMS XN RFEFREEMNEE
ZAEEWE

2012 2011

=2—=F B

HK$°000 HK$ 000

FET FET

Within one year —FA 2,924 2,249
In the second to fifth year inclusive F-_ERFHAFRN

(BEREMEREERN) 1,995 2,784

Over five years EFRE 11 _

4,930 5,033

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for rented
premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term ranging
from three to six years (2011: three years) and rentals are fixed

throughout the lease period.

LEHENFEDEENZEE -HE
R=FE~F(ZTE——F:=ZF)H
RipEENEERRN 2 EETIEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-T-——F=A=+—HILFE
30. Operating Leases (continued) 30. £ EMEE @)
The Group as lessor AEEEREEAA
Property rental income earned during the year was FRYMEMES WA BS,756,1148 7T
HK$3,756,114 (2011: nil). The property held has committed —TE——F:|) BANYEEER
tenants for the next two years. e ABRRMEREL -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted REEZE B - AEEBEL M5 THIRK
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: REHEFT LA
2012
—E—_F
HK$°000
FHT
Within one year —F A 3,045
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRFAN(BEMERRELEA) 896
3,941
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR & B M EEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE—_ZT——F=A=1+—HLLFE
31.Capital Commitments 31. EARKIE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
Capital expenditure contracted BB EREE
3 e BA 42 A 0 A
for but not provided in the consolidated Eiﬂ;ﬁ&é% = MBS 7
financial statements in respect of: e '
— acquisition of an investment property —BEREME - 137,295
— acquisition of property, plant and —BEWE BEK&E
equipment 14,389 52,413
— construction of a factory plant — BRI 554 16,542
14,943 206,250
Capital expenditure authorised Btk BARELZ
but not contracted for in respect of: CRNES 22 s
— acquisition of property, - ﬁﬁ;%“ ME - BB R
plant and equipment B 71,640 116,031
— construction of a factory plant — BRI - 10,423
71,640 126,454
86,583 332,704
32.Pledge of Assets 32. EEEH

The Group has pledged certain leasehold land under finance
lease and investment property having carrying amounts of
approximately HK$9,251,000 (2011: HK$9,261,000) and
HK$181,100,000 (2011: nil) respectively as at 31 March 2012
to secure general banking facilities and mortgage loan granted
to the Group.

AEBR-_E——F=HF=+—~8”
EHRBEEESD A 49,251,000
T (=ZZF——%:9,261,000& 7t) &
181,100,000 T (=T ——F : &) 2
ETREHEREN T REFRIE
BYE  MERARSEER 2 —RIRTT
EERERBERZER-
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33. Retirement Benefits Schemes

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong participates in both a
defined contribution scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”) in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from employees
of 5% of their salaries. The employers will contribute based on
the monthly salaries of employees according to the following

mEMBRESHE

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

33. Bk @A &

BB A2 ERMEERR NS
MR B RARE S B RBIED ([RFE
B RER=ZZTZTF+-AK
MR IR S GRO 2B MERTE
it 8 ([RESFE]) - %HEEE
BAEEEERNFARE AHEER
BEREAMEFRIZBIESRE -

2mAEetElZER  BARKAA
BZ25% o B E M ARIE AT EHIRETE
SABREHRZHRE:

schedule:

Rate of
Number of completed years of service contribution
5E B AR 7 6 HA it E
Not more than 5 years DLRAF 5%
More than 5 years but not more than 10 years ZHRAFERTZRI105F 7.5%
More than 10 years ZRTF 10%

The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
subsidiaries’ contributions and accrued returns after
participating in the ORSO Scheme for 10 years or more, or
at an increased scale of 30% to 90% after participating in
the ORSO Scheme from 3 to 9 years respectively. Where
an employee leaves the employment prior to becoming
fully entitled to the employer’s contributions, the excess
contributions are forfeited and the employer may utilise the
forfeited contributions to reduce its future contributions. At 31
March 2011 and 2012, the Group had no material unutilised
forfeited contributions in the ORSO Scheme which may be
used to reduce the Group’s future contributions.

2MAERFTERTFE2ES  AIE2EP
ZEMBARIREEH 2HHBRE
HEFNE B2 NFEAIEIF EE
1 ZB30%E90%E = 2 558 o i fE
B AREEREE B (& = R AT BER -
Al B TR miEERIERFAT
R BRI BN 2 HR-EE
—E2——RkZET—=-F=H=+—H
b AEER B ERLBAR AT EHIR
iz HFKER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

33. Retirement Benefits Schemes

(Continued)

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 65
and with at least 59 days of service under the employment in
Hong Kong. Contributions from employers and employees are
5% each of the employee’s relevant income. The maximum
relevant income for contribution purpose is HK$20,000 per
month. The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
Group’s contributions and accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group but the benefits are required
by law to be presented until the retirement age of 65.

The employees of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The contributions for the
scheme in the PRC are made based on a percentage of the
average salary as advised by the relevant authority in the PRC.
The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as they became payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme. The subsidiaries
operating in the PRC also contributed to a local municipal
government retirement scheme for all qualified employees in
the PRC. The employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at the rates specified in the
rules.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
schemes in the PRC is to make the retired contributions under
the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

31

mEMBRESHE

E_E-_F=A=1+—BILFE

33. RIRBERIF& =)

BIESFTEI N HATH18E5m I ER
BEARIEIBZEREL N - AEBE KR
BEFHYRIEREECBBAABIELS%
ZHF-RHERME - BEAABLERE
§ A20,000% 7T - TamHR A K E 2 AR
BEH  EEHARGEAEE2IHR
E R EET R - R EEED - B ARz
R B ERIKF #R655% /7 A] <BER ©

TEMEARZEREFTES M)
BT EIE 2 P REREFETE] o 10 B
ZEFEHETIRETEEHEERAEZE
AT EBDLAERK - HHRE
ErRA2ERERATE  ARETR
BREF B Z GRPILE IR R A - B
Y I8 2 B B2 {1 3 [ TR AT AR I 48 A 1
MRAaBEBENET - EXREEHAN
K e

HAAREERBEAME—FEAEZR
KRB < R BRI Z A AEIRUE A 2K
P 5K -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as at

31 March 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary
WA R AE

Allan Electric Mfg., Limited
CHREXREARAA

Allan International Limited*

Allan Mould Manufacturing Limited
SRIREERRAT

Allan Plastic Mfg., Limited
TREBHERRT

Allan Toys Manufacturing Limited
SR ARRERAT

SR IEMR (BN BRAR

BXIX (BR)BRAA

Artreal Manufactory Limited
BEIXBRAA

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

B REE 3k

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRUBE/BR

Hong Kong/PRC
BB/ h

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
B

PRC*
P E

PRC*
P E

Hong Kong
BE
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mEMBRESHE

HE_T——E=A=1+—RHIIEE

M. XTI ZETEHBRQF

RZBE——-FR_F——F=H

=+—R ARFAZ2EHBAAHE

o

Issued and fully

paid share capital

or registered capital

2012 & 2011

ERTRBZRAT
AMEE-—B-—FR-_B-——-F

100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each and
50,000 non-voting deferred shares of
HK$10 each

1008% & B B 107 7T 2 & 8 A% )250,000
REREEI10BT 2 ERZEELRN

55,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
55,000k SR EE1E L2 LBk

100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100 B REEIET 2 LB

3,005 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
3,005k B R E BT < @R

270,000 ordinary shares of HK$10 each
270,000/ R EE10 T 2 LB

Registered capital of USD42,000,000
(2011: USD27,000,000)

i & 442,000,000 7T
(=2 ——%:27,000,000%7T)

Registered capital of HK$75,000,000
&1t & 475,000,000/ 7T

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
R B IRE BT Z LR

Principal activities

TEXH

Investment holding
REZK

Investment holding

REER

Manufacturing of plastic
injection moulds
EEFEER

Property holding and
trading of household
electrical appliances

HANEREHEZESR
Inactive
BmER

Manufacturing of
household electrical
appliances and
plastic parts

EEFXEERK
BREH

Manufacturing of
household electrical
appliances and
plastic parts

FEREEEKR
BREHG

Trading of household
electrical appliances
BHRER S
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34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAR LM
Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited

FREFEAR DA

Electrical Investments Limited

Ever Sources Investment Limited

SREREBRAA

Global Express (HK) Limited
i (F8)ERAA

Good Eagle Investment Limited

EEREBRAA

Great Yield Limited
RIGERAH

EEHEERERERA

ELTREBESEXERAA

HEE TERE (BM)BRA

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

B REF 3k

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RERAES/BE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

PRC*
P E

PRC*
P E

PRC*
P E

e UBRE

M

BE—T——F=-A=1t—HILFE

(%)

Issued and fully

paid share capital

or registered capital

2012 & 2011

ERTRBZRAT
AMEF—B-—ER-_B-—-F
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
REREBEIRT 2 ERR

1 ordinary share of USD1
IRAEEIET AR

100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100 EREEIET 2 ZBKR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
REREBEIRT 2 EBR

1 ordinary share of HK$1
1REEE L EBR

1 ordinary share of HK$ 1
1REEE L EBR

Registered capital of HK$2,800,000
7t it & 752,800,000/ 7

Registered capital of HK$100,000,000
& it & 2100,000,0007% 7

Registered capital of USD3,500,000
7 it & 743,500,000 7T

4. XRTZETEHB AT

Principal activities

TEXH

Trading of household
electrical appliances
BHREER

Inactive

LEXH

Property holding
RENZE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Manufacturing and trading
of household electrical
appliances and plastic
parts

FEREHERETRR
BREHG

Manufacturing of
household electrical
appliances and plastic
parts

YEFXEERREBZH

Manufacturing and trading
of household electrical
appliances and
plastic parts

FEREHERETRR
BREHG
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34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELR LM

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited
FREXREARAA

New Prestige Investments Limited*

Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic &
Metalwares Factory Limited
B (RR)ZBRIEBERAA

Progress Associates Limited*

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

AR IR B LEE LY
Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/

Hong Kong
RERAHE/ER
Southern Well Holdings Limited” Hong Kong/PRC
HEEEARAA BB/ HE
Total Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RERAHE/ER
Warran Electric Manufacturing Limited ~ Hong Kong
EREFHEFRAF Bt
Well Sincere Investment Limited* Hong Kong
BRREBRRAA" Bt
* Direct subsidiaries
& Wholly foreign-owned enterprises

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.
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(%)

Issued and fully

paid share capital

or registered capital

2012 & 2011

ERTRBZRAT
AMEF—B-—ER-_B-—-F

100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100 EREEIET 2 LB

1 ordinary share of HK$1
1REEE L EBR

100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each and
54,000 non-voting deferred shares of
HK$10 each

1008k & AR I {1078 7T 2 & Ak 54,000
REREE10BT 2 ERZEELRN

1 ordinary share of USD1
IRAEEIET AR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
REREBEIRT 2 EBR
2 ordinary shares of USD1 each

R EEIE T A

100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each
100l B REE10# T 2 ZBAR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
REREBEIRT 2 ERR

* HEWBAR
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M. EATZEEMBER A

Principal activities

TEXH

Trading of household
electrical appliances
BHREER

Property investment

RENE

Development of moulds
and trading of precision
components

RERARGHER TS

Investment in securities

BAFRE

Property holding
RENE

Investment holding
REZK

Provision of transportation
services

REER R

Investment holding
REZKR

#  2EIEBELE

Ao

RER  HERRASEEITEN RS E
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Financial Summary

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group for the five years ended 31 March 2012.

Revenue

Profit before tax
Taxation

Net profit for the year

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

EXE

BR % A A
WA

AR A F A

PR HE

TRAAEEHE_ZE——_F=A=+—H

TREFEzZXE EENAGHE-

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=1+-HLFE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—g--f —Z——§F ZZZT-THF ZIZTTNF ZTITN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

(Restated) (Restated)

(&%) (ZF%1)
2,416,920 2,220,511 1,820,187 1,869,529 1,547,825
153,451 199,631 234,483 130,881 74,757
(26,314) (38,400) (43,117) (23,943) (9,885)
127,137 161,231 191,366 106,938 64,872

As at 31 March
R=BA=+—8H

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E--f —T——F ZIET-THF ZTTNFE ZTITNF
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

(Restated)

(Z51)
1,780,232 1,380,190 1,235,724 1,036,196 916,460
838,494 528,249 476,910 414,651 375,633
941,738 851,941 758,814 621,545 540,827
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